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CITY OF

Marbte Falls

TEXAS

NOTICE OF MEETING
GOVERNING BODY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
Tuesday, March 1, 2016 — 6:00 pm

A quorum of the Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation
and the Planning & Zoning Commission may be present

Notice is hereby given that on the 1% day of March, 2016 the Marble Falls City Council will meet
in regular session at 6:00 pm in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 800 3™ Street,
Marble Falls, Texas, at which time the following subjects will be discussed:

1.

2.

3.

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM IS PRESENT

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES AND TO

THE TEXAS FLAG. *“Honor the Texas Flag; | pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state
under God, one and indivisible.”

UPDATES, PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS
Update from ATMOS Energy. Randy Hartford
Update from the Marble Falls Independent School District. Dr. Chris Allen

Presentation on LCRA Steps Forward Program. Parks and Recreation
Department

CITIZEN COMMENTS. This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Council
concerning an issue of community interest that is not on the agenda. Comments on a specific
agenda item must be made when the agenda item comes before the Council. The Mayor may
place a time limit on all comments. Any deliberation of an issue raised during Citizen Comments
is limited to a proposal to place it on the agenda for a later meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA. The items listed are considered to be routine and non-controversial
by the Council and will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless a Councilmember so requests, in which case the item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda prior to a motion and vote. The item will be considered in its normal sequence
on the Regular Agenda.

(a) Approval of the minutes of the February 16, 2016 regular meeting. Christina

McDonald, City Secretary

(b) Approval of the First Quarter Investment Report for the period October 1, 2015

through December 31, 2015. Margie Cardenas, Finance Director
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(c) Approval of the Budget Calendar for Fiscal Year 2016/2017. Margie Cardenas,
Finance Director

(d) Approval of Resolution 2016-R-03B supporting Citizens for Scenic Highways
2016/2017 beautification project Central Texas-Gateway to the Hill Country
Burnet County — Texas Highway 281 and 71 Intersection. Christina McDonald,
City Secretary

(e) Approval of Resolution 2016-R-03A authorizing the submission of a grant
application to the Office of the Governor for FY 2016 State Homeland Security
Program Grant. Ted Young, Police Captain

(f) Approval of the cancellation of the March 15, 2016 regular meeting. Mike Hodge,
City Manager

7. REGULAR AGENDA. Council will individually consider and possibly take action on any or
all of the following items:

(a) Discussion and Action on the acceptance of the FY 2014/15 Comprehensive
Annual Financial Audit. Margie Cardenas, Finance Director

(b) Discussion and Action on the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update. Eric Belaj,
City Engineer

(c) Discussion and update regarding the current Capital Improvement Plan. Eric
Belaj, City Engineer

(d) Discussion regarding a Transportation Utility Fund. Caleb Kraenzel, Director of
Development Services

(e) Receipt and Acceptance of the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for the
May 7, 2016 General Election as certified by the City Secretary. Christina
McDonald, City Secretary

(f) Discussion and Action on Ordinance 2016-O-03A cancelling the May 7, 2016
General Election and declaring each unopposed candidate elected to office.
Christina McDonald, City Secretary

8. CITY MANAGER’'S REPORT
Update on the CARTS building.
Update on Public Safety Building.
Update on Wayfinding signs.
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9. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Close Open Session and Convene Executive Session Pursuant to §551.071
(Private Consultation between the Council and its Attorney) and pursuant to 8551.072
(Deliberation Regarding the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property) of
the Open Meetings Act. Tex. Gov't Code, Council will meet in Executive Session to
discuss the following:
Consultation with City Attorney regarding the authority of the City to
manage the closure of Avenue N.
Discuss economic development projects associated with development of
EDC owned and City owned property.

10.RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION FOR POSSIBLE ACTION RESULTING
FROM ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION.

11.ANNOUNCEMENTS AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS.

12. ADJOURNMENT.

“The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of
this meeting to discuss any matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Government Code,
including, but not limited to, Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about
Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076
(Deliberations about Security Devices), 551.087 (Economic Development), 418.183 (Deliberations about
Homeland Security Issues) and as authorized by the Texas Tax Code, including, but not limited to,
Section 321.3022 (Sales Tax Information).”

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Marble Falls will provide for reasonable
accommodations for persons attending City Council Meetings. To better serve you, requests should be
received 24 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact Ms. Christina McDonald, City Secretary at (830)
693-3615.

Certificate of Posting

I, Christina McDonald, City Secretary for the City of Marble Falls, Texas, do certify that this Notice of
Meeting was posting at City Hall, in a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the
25t day of February, 2016 at 11:30 am and remained so posted for at least 72 continuous hours
preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

/s/ Christina McDonald
Christina McDonald, TRMC
City Secretary
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March 1, 2016
6. CONSENT AGENDA

(a) Approval of the minutes of the February 16, 2016 regular meeting. Christina
McDonald, City Secretary

Background information is attached as follows:

February 16, 2016 reqular meeting minutes
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STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BURNET
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS

On this the 16" day of February, 2016 the Council of the City of Marble Falls convened in
regular session at 6:00 pm at the City Hall Council Chambers located at 800 Third Street,
Marble Falls, Texas, with notice of meeting giving time, place, date, and subject having been
posted as described in Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

PRESENT: John Packer Mayor
Jane Marie Hurst Mayor Pro-Tem
Rachel Austin-Cook Councilmember
Reed Norman Councilmember
Richard Westerman Councilmember
ABSENT: Richard Lewis Councilmember
Ryan Nash Councilmember
STAFE: Mike Hodge City Manager
Patty Akers City Attorney
Christina McDonald City Secretary
Mark Whitacre Police Chief
Caleb Kraenzel Director of Development Services
Robert Moss Director of Parks and Recreation
Eric Belaj City Engineer

Margie Cardenas
Glenn Hanson
Steve Eickstein
Tom Dillard
Justin Boucher
Johnny Caraway

Finance Director

CID Captain

Patrol Lieutenant

CID Sergeant

Patrol Officer

Fire Chief/Fire Marshal

VISITORS: Thomas Martin, Brian Shirley (CIP Vice Chair), Curtis Knetsch (3102 Morgan Circle),
Darlene Oostermeyer (P&Z Commissioner), Mary Mayfield (Marble Falls Housing Authority), Jo
Karr Tedder (Central Texas Water Coalition, Glynis Smith (The Highlander), Charles Watkins
(Parks and Recreation Commission), Patti Zinsmeyer (Marble Falls/Lake LBJ Chamber and CVB),
Mary Ann Raesener (Mayor, City of Meadowlakes), Tony Plumlee, Mr. Packer, Jon-Erik Johnson,
PE (Texas Air Systems)

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM IS PRESENT. Mayor Packer called the
meeting to order and announced the presence of a quorum.

2. INVOCATION. Brian Shirley gave the invocation.
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3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES AND TO THE TEXAS
FLAG. Mayor Pro-Tem Hurst led the pledges.

4. UPDATES, PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS
Proclamation — Mayor Packer proclaimed the week of February 21-27 National
Engineers Week and recognized engineers present; Eric Belaj, Thomas Martin, Tony
Plumlee, Mike Hodge and Jon-Erik Johnson.
Update from the Marble Falls Housing Authority. Mark Mayfield, Executive
Director of the Marble Falls Housing Authority gave an update.

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS. There were no citizen comments.

6. CONSENT AGENDA.
(a) Approval of the minutes of the February 2, 2016 regular meeting and workshop.

(b) Approval of a Park Concession Agreement between the City of Marble Falls and
Tamara Johnson for the purpose of Zumba classes at the Westside Park Community
Hall.

(c) Acceptance of the Annual Contact Report from the Marble Falls Police Department.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hurst made a motion to approve the consent agenda. The motion was
seconded by Councilmember Norman. The consent agenda was approved by a
unanimous vote (5-0).

7. REGULAR AGENDA.

(a) Public Hearing, Discussion, and Action on the first reading of Ordinance 2016-0-02C
and waiving the second reading of Conditional Use Permit request to allow Single-
Family Residential within the General Commercial Base District (C-3), with site plan
approval, on Lot 9-A, Block No. 70, Marble Falls Original Township, City of Marble
Falls, Burnet County, Texas, municipally addressed as 908 Avenue G. Mayor Packer
opened the public hearing. Caleb Kraenzel, Director of Development Services addressed
Council. Property owner Curtis Knetsh was present. There being no further discussion,
Mayor Packer closed the public hearing. Councilmember Norman made a motion to
approve Ordinance 2016-0-02C and waive the second reading. The motion was
seconded by Councilmember Westerman and carried by a vote of 5-0.

(b) Discussion and Action on approval of Interlocal Agreement regarding annual renewal
of membership and participation in the Central Texas Water Coalition. Mike Hodge,
City Manager introduced CTWC representative Jo Karr Tedder. Ms. Tedder addressed
Council. Councilmember Westerman made a motion to approve the annual agreement
(January 1 — December 31, 2016) as presented with a membership fee of $5,000 to be
funded from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund. Councilmember Austin-Cook seconded the

motion. The motion carried by a unanimous vote (5-0).
February 16, 2016 Meeting
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©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

Discussion and Action on appointments to the Ethics Review Commission. City
Manager Mike Hodge addressed Council. Mayor Packer stated that staff has had a
difficult time appointing members to the Ethics Review Commission as the commission
does not meet on a regular basis. Mayor Packer asked if ethics complaints can be filed
with the State Ethics Commission. Patty Akers, City Attorney stated that the State Ethics
Commission does not hear municipal complaints, however the Ethics Ordinance can be
amended so that the commission is an ad hoc commission and only meets on an as
needed basis. Council concurred that this is the direction they wish to pursue. It was
noted that the ordinance amendment would be brought back to Council for approval at
a later date.

Discussion and Action on appointments to the Capital Improvement Plan Committee.
Christina McDonald, City Secretary stated that the terms of Sharon Pittard, Mary Ellen
Goff, Tony Plumlee and Brian Shirley have expired. Ms. Goff, Mr. Plumlee and Mr.
Shirley filed reappointed questionnaires for Council’s consideration. Ms. Morris did not
wish to be considered for reappointment. Mayor Pro-Tem Hurst made a motion to
appoint Mary Ellen Goff, Brian Shirley and Tony Plumlee to the CIP Committee for a
term of two years. Councilmember Westerman seconded the motion. The motion
carried by a vote of 5-0.

Discussion and Action on appointments to the Hotel Motel Tax Advisory Committee.
Christina McDonald, City Secretary stated that the terms of Brenda Morris and David
Rhodes have expired. Mr. Rhodes has filed a reappointment questionnaire for Council’s
consideration. Ms. Morris does not wish to be considered for reappointment, however
staff has an application on file from Darlene Oostermeyer for consideration. Mayor Pro-
Tem Hurst made a motion to appoint David Rhodes and Darlene Oostermeyer to the
HOT Committee to serve for a term of two years. Councilmember Westerman seconded
the motion. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0.

Discussion and Action on appointments to Places 2, 3, 4 and 6 of the Parks and
Recreation Commission. Christina McDonald, City Secretary stated the terms of Steve
Manley (Place 2), Charles Watkins (Place 4) and Leta Stevenson-Smith (Place 6) have
expired. In addition, Place 3 (Josh Parker) is vacant due to Mr. Parker’s recent
resignation.  Mr. Watkins and Ms. Stevens—Smith submitted reappointment
questionnaires for Council’s considered. Mr. Manley does not wish to be considered for
reappointment. Staff has two applications on file for Council’s consideration: Steve
Hurt and Ann Berg.

Councilmember Norman made a motion to appoint Charles Watkins and Leta
Stevenson-Smith to Places 4 and 6 respectively, Steve Hurst to Place 2 for a term of two
years and Ann Berg to Place 3, filling the unexpired term of Mr. Parker. Councilmember
Westerman seconded the motion. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0.
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(g9) Discussion and Action on appointments to Places 2, 4 and 6 of the Planning and Zoning

Commission.  Christina McDonald, City Secretary stated the terms of Darlene
Oostermeyer (Place 2), Jason Coleman (Place 4) and Thomas Barr (Place 6) have expired.
All commissioners have submitted reappointed questionnaires. Staff also has an
application on file for Council’s consideration from Thomas Martin.

Councilmember Westerman made a motion to reappoint Ms. Oostermeyer, Mr.
Coleman and Mr. Barr to places 2, 4, and 6 respectively. Councilmember Austin-Cook
seconded the motion. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0.

Mayor Packer thanked Mr. Martin for submitting his application. Mr. Martin stated he
would be interested in serving on the CIP Committee. Mayor Packer stated there was a
vacancy left my former member Sharon Pittard. Mayor Packer reopened agenda item
7(d). Councilmember Norman made a motion to appoint Thomas Martin to the CIP
Committee for a term of two years. Mayor Pro-Tem Hurst seconded the motion. The
motion carried by a unanimous vote (5-0).

(h) Discussion regarding feeding wildlife in the city limits. Chief of Police Mark Whitacre

10.

11.

12.

stated this item had been placed on the agenda at Council’s request. Chief Whitacre
introduced Lieutenant Steve Eckstein, Officer Justin Boucher and Sergeant Tom Dillard.
Officer Boucher and Sergeant Dillard gave a presentation. No action was taken at this
time.

Discussion regarding Unmanned Aerial Systems (Drones). Chief of Police Mark
Whitacre stated this item had been placed on the agenda at the request of a
Councilmember. Chief Whitacre introduced Captain Glenn Hanson who gave a brief
presentation. No action was taken.

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT. City Manager Mike Hodge stated that the new Fire Chief,
Russell Sander begins on March 8. Mr. Hodge also gave an update on the city email
domain name change to marblefallstx.gov and asked Council to contact City Secretary
Christina McDonald if they were experiencing any issues with their email.

EXECUTIVE SESSION. Council did not convene to executive session.

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION FOR POSSIBLE ACTION RESULTING FROM ITEMS
DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION.

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS. Items for the March 1 agenda were
reviewed.

ADJOURNMENT. There being no further business to discuss, Councilmember Norman
made a motion to adjourn. Councilmember Austin-Cook seconded the motion. The
meeting was adjourned at 8:25 pm.
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John Packer, Mayor

ATTEST:

Christina McDonald, TRMC
City Secretary
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March 1, 2016
6. CONSENT AGENDA

(b) Approval of the First Quarter Investment Report for the period October 1, 2015
through December 31, 2015. Margie Cardenas, Finance Director

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation

6(b)
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CITY OF

AMarble Falls

TEXAS

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo
March 1, 2016

Agenda Item No.: 6(b)

Presenter: Margie Cardenas
Department: Finance
Legal Review: Cd N/A

AGENDA CAPTION |

Approval of the 15t Quarterly Investment Report for the period October 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2015.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

The 18t quarter report shows earnings of $2,564. The higher earnings this quarter were
from the certificates of deposits at our local bank at an amount of $1,517. The demand
deposit accounts earned $755 this quarter, and the funds are at three of our local
banks. The investment pool, Logic earned $292 this quarter.

This quarter our weighted average yield of .183 is below the 6 months T-Bill benchmark
of .490. Our weighted average maturity is 101 days. Towards the end of 2015 interest

rates rose a little, then they fell back again in 2016. The benchmark at 12/31/15, of the 6
months T-Bill was high as compared to the rest of the calendar year.

View report
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(24

City of Marble Falls

Quarterly Investment Report

1ST QUARTER: October 1, 2015 - December 31, 2015

Summary of Investments by Type

Value of all Investments Value of all Investments
at 10/01/2015 at 12/31/2015

Description Book Value Market Value | Book Value | Market Value
Demand Deposits $1,234,650 $1,234,650 $2,817,910 $2,817,910
Logic 783,991 $783,991 539,283 539,283
Cert. of Deposit 4,248,000 $4,248,000 4,248,000 4,248,000

Total: $6,266,641 $6,266,641 $7,605,193 $7,605,193

Summary of Investments by Fund Group

Fund Description at 10/01/2015 | at 12/31/2015 Change
General Fund 606,671 1,598,027 $992,356
Enterprise Fund 57,064 60,274 $3,210
Economic Development Corp. 1,060,860 1,176,363 $115,403
Debt Service Funds 114,716 584,922 $470,206
Capital Project Funds 4,265,938 4,020,986 ($244,952)
Special Revenue Funds 161,292 163,621 $2,329

Total: $6,266,641 $7,605,193 $1,338,552

Summary of Interest Earnings by Type of Investment

[ This Quarter | Year-to-Date Average

Description Oct 16- Dec 15 [ Oct 15-Dec 15 | Interest Rate
Demand Deposits 755 755 0.250
Logic 292 292 0.088
Cert. of Deposit 1,517 1,517 0.150

Total: $2,564 $2,564
WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD 0.183
BENCHMARK YIELD: 6 Months T-Bill Benchmark Yield 0.490

1 Year T- Bill Benchmark Yield 0.650
WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY 101.9 Days

The City of Marble Falls Investment Portfolio is in compliance with the investment strategy
of its investment policy and the relevant provisions of Chapter 2256 of the Public Funds
Investment Act.

) O Y —

2-14-16

Mike Hodge, City Manager/ Investment 0 Date

Lucwlwza« )

Margie Zardenas, Director of Finance/ Investment Officer Date




Account Name

General Fund
Credit Card Account - Security
Credit Card Account - FSB
Operating Account - IBC
Operating Account - Security Bank
Operating Account - FSB
Insurance Trust - Security
Insurance Trust - FSB

Total General Fund

Enterprise Fund
Utility Deposit - IBC
Utility Deposit - Security
Utility Deposit - FSB
Total Enterprise Fund

Economic Development Corporation
Economic Development Corp.-IBC
Economic Development Corp-Security
Economic Development Corp - FSB

Total EDC

Debt Service
General Fund 1&S
General Fund 1&S - FSB
Total Debt Service

Special Revenue
Police Forfeiture Fund
Police Forfeiture Fund - FSB
Police Federal Forfeiture Fund
Police Federal Forfeiture Fund - FSB
Flood Buy Back Fund-Security
Flood Buy Back Fund- FSB
La Ventana PID
La Ventana PID - FSB
TIRZ Fund-FSB

Total Special Revenue

GRAND TOTAL

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS
DEMAND DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 12/31/2015

Ending Balance
at 09-30-2015

0.00
127,926.95
35,732.83
0.00
442,999.00
0.00

11.82

606,670.60

746.88
0.00
56,317.55

Ending Balance
at 12-31-2015

0.00
121,718.50
35,738.65
0.00
1,441,557.86
0.00

12.31

57,064.43

243,059.34
0.00
54,815.58

297,874.92

0.00
112,474.53

1,699,027.32

746.88
0.00
59,526.85

60,273.73

243,008.94
0.00
169,935.99

112,474.53

0.00
83,434.26
0.00
55,084.35

0.00

0.00
7,529.10
14,517.59

413,034.93

0.00
582,679.56

160,565.30

1,234,649.78

582,679.56

0.00
85,569.56
0.00
55,119.07

0.00

0.00
7,678.05
14,528.00

162,894.68

2,817,910.22

Interest

0
45.32
5.82
0.00
331.69
0.00
0.49

383.32

0.00
0.00
35.95

35.95

39.60
0.00
76.91
116.51

0.00
116.37
116.37

0.00
52.80
0.00
34.72
0.00
0.00
0.00
4.75
10.98

103.25

755.40



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS POOL INVESTMENTS
AS OF 12/31/2015

LOGIC
Acct Name Acct Number GL Acct# Amount Interest

Economic Development Corp. #25 20-1008 515,327.97 242.84
Total EDC 515,327.97 242.84
Police Forfeiture Fund #16 09-1007 - -
Police Federal Forfeiture #23 67-1015 - -
Hotel/Motel Funds #15 03-1026 726.51 0.23
Total Special Revenue 726.51 0.23
General Fund Interest & Sinking #27 04-1034 2,242.58 1.05
Total Debt Service 2,242.58 1.05
WWW System Improvements #22 44-1020 2,842.31 1.23
C.O. Series 2008 #29 58-1030 156.45 0.01
Gen. Improvement Series 2011 #31 68-1033 539.78 0.14
Utility Improvement Series 2011 #32 45-1031 17,447.23 46.16
Total Capital Improvement 20,985.77 47.54
GRAND TOTAL 539,282.83 291.66




CD Name

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Utility Improvements Fund
Total Utility Improvement

General Improv. Fund
RENEWED

General Improv. Fund
RENEWED

Total General Improvement

Total Capital Project Funds

EDC FUND

EDC
RENEWED

Total EDC Fund

GRAND TOTAL

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT

CD Number Acct#

100140255 45-1004

100140261 68-1012
100140262 68-1011

As of 12/31/2015

Issue Date Maturity Date Term of CD

06/20/2015

05/06/2015
11/06/2015
05/06/2015
11/06/2015

9791682 20-1005.0¢  04/09/2015

10/10/2015

12/17/2015

11/06/2016
05/06/2015
11/06/2015
05/06/2016

10/09/2015
04/10/2016

180 days

180 days
180 days
180 days
180 days

180 days
180 days

Amount

1,000,000.00

~1,000,600.00

1,500,000.00
1,500,000.00

3,000,000.00

4,000,000.00

248,000.00

248,000.00

4,248,000.00

Int Rate

0.15

0.16
0.15

0.15

0.15
0.15

1st Qtr Int

316.44

316.44

221.92
332.88
221.92
332.88

1,109.60

1,426.04

9.17

81.53

90.70

1,516.74



March 1, 2016
6. CONSENT AGENDA

(c) Approval of the Budget Calendar for Fiscal Year 2016/2017. Margie Cardenas,
Finance Director

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation

6(c)
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CITY OF

AMarble Falls

TEXAS

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo
March 1, 2016

Agenda Item No.: 6(c)

Presenter: Margie Cardenas
Department: Finance Department
Legal Review: O Not Applicable X

AGENDA CAPTION

Approval of the Budget Calendar for Fiscal Year 2016/2017.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

We have scheduled the dates for our 2016/2017 Budget Calendar. Please review and
let us know if there are any conflicts with the dates. Specifically, June 2" Council
Budget Retreat, and July 27-28" Budget workshops.

This year the annual Council Budget Retreat will be held at La Quinta. The Budget
workshops will take place in the Council Chambers of City Hall.
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April 6

April 6
May 23-27

June 2

June 10

June 16

June 20-24

June 28

July 6

July 12
July 27-28

July 25
July 29

August 2

August 16

September 6

September
20

Budget Kickoff
Meeting

Administration

New Council
Orientation

Council Budget
Retreat

Initial Budget
Input Deadline

CIP Committee
Meeting

Budget Review
Meetings
HOT
Committee
Meeting
Prioritization
Workshop

Finance

Budget
Workshop

BCAD

Finance

Council Meeting

Council Meeting

Council Meeting

Council Meeting

Presentation by the City Manager of the budget and expectations.
Distribution of the budget manual. Budget Preparation instruction
workshop. All Department Heads and key budget staff to attend.
Council Chambers. After 9:00 a.m. staff meeting

Budget request letters sent to Outside Agencies

Opportunity for new council members to visit the city departments,
meet with department heads and receive briefing on current
projects. 9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Meeting with Council and City Manager to determine goals and
objectives for the FY 16-17 budget
Location — La Quinta, Marble Falls - 10:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.

All items to be turned in including Narratives and Performance
Measures. Preliminary revenue estimates completed by Finance and
entered into the budget draft.

FY16/17 Projects Presented to the CIP committee
Council Chambers - 4:00 p.m. —6: 00 p.m.

Meetings with City Manager and Department Heads

Hotel Occupancy Tax funding requests presented to committee
Council chambers -11:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

Workshop with CM and Department Heads
Council Chambers — After 9:00 a.m. staff meeting.

Working draft of line item budget provided to City Manager

Public Meeting with Staff and City Council
Council Chambers - 11:30 a.m. — 4:00 p.m.

Tax Appraisal Roll received from Burnet County Appraisal District

Publish Effective and Rollback Tax Rate Notice in the Official
Newspaper

Governing Body to discuss tax rate, take record vote and schedule
public hearing

Public Hearing and first reading of Budget and Appropriations
Ordinance and Tax Rate Ordinance

Public Hearing and second reading on Budget and Appropriations
Ordinance and Tax Rate Ordinance

Adoption of Budget and Appropriations Ordinance and Tax Rate
Ordinance
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March 1, 2016
6. CONSENT AGENDA

(d) Approval of Resolution 2016-R-03B supporting Citizens for Scenic Highways
2016/2017 beautification project Central Texas-Gateway to the Hill Country
Burnet County — Texas Highway 281 and 71 Intersection. Christina McDonald,
City Secretary

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation

6(d)
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CITY OF

AMarble Falls

TEXAS

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo
March 1, 2016

Agenda Item No.: 6(d)

Presenter: Christina McDonald, City Secretary
Department: Administration
Legal Review: O Not Applicable X

AGENDA CAPTION |

Approval of Resolution 2016-R-03B supporting citizens for Scenic Highway 2016/2017
Beautification Project Central Texas-Gateway to the Hill Country Burnet County — Texas
Highway 281 and 71 Intersection.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

Soc Gonzalez, a founding member of Citizens for Scenic Highways, a three (3) year full
time resident of Sandy Harbor, Llano County is a retired industrial sales executive,
currently serving as a Team Member at Horseshoe Bay ACE Hardware.

Fourteen (14) years of commutes from Dallas with wife Susan cultivated a deep
appreciation of the natural beauty of the Hill Country region and awareness and respect
for TXDOT’s on-going commitment to maintain safe and beautiful Texas Highways.

Realizing urban expansion West of Austin will quickly absorb communities in Burnet and
Llano Counties into a sprawling Austin suburbia, focus on protecting and preserving
the landscapes are a high priority. Maintaining dark skies, anti-bill board initiatives and
highway beautification agendas are challenges that, if successful, will help sustain the
natural beauty of the Hill County region for future generations to treasure.

Inspired by Dallasite Jason Roberts’ proactive citizen action, TEDxOU — “How to Build a
Better Block”, Soc has been proactive in many community improvement projects in
Sandy Harbor and Llano County,

In partnership with the office of Llano County Commissioner Peter Jones, volunteer
accomplishments include: Texas Forest Service and TEEX Wildland Firefighter Training
sessions, as well as, TEEX Public Road Maintenance seminars conducted at no cost in
Llano County. As a volunteer in Llano County’s “Adopt-A-County Road” monthly litter
patrols are conducted on CR311. Gained TxDOT’s commitment to re-seed twelve (12)
miles of easement on HWY 71 in South East Llano, after a two (2) year major highway
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improvement project altered highway easements previously abundant with wild flowers
each spring.

Soc serves as a CASA advocate, as well as a Volunteer Fireman and POA board
member in his Sandy Harbor community.

THE PROJECT:

A newly organized citizen action group submitted a Beautification Project for wildflower
seeding at the intersection of Highway 281 and SH 71 proposal to TxDOT Burnet
District Engineer, October 16, 2015 which included two (2) phases. The project is
intended to be sustainable with minimal seeding in future years.

Phase ONE: Arborist Services

A January 2016 date was targeted to initiate professional Arborist volunteer work,
trimming trees, clearing undergrowth, removal of dead and unsightly vegetation to
highlight the beauty of healthy native tree clusters.

Professional Arborist services were offered as a donation to TXDOT by Mills Services of
Kingsland, Llano County. TxDOT Regional office opted not to accept offer due to
liability concerns. Recognizing the merit of the proposal, TxXDOT Johnson City based
maintenance crews were authorized to initiate Phase ONE January 13, 2016 with the
intent to complete “as manpower and equipment schedules allow”.

Phase TWO: Wildflower seeding 2016/2017

Encourage donations from individuals, the business community and major employers
dedicating funds to purchase wildflower seed mix for delivery to TXDOT for abundant
seeding during planting seasons of 2016 and 2017

Terry McCoy P.E., District Engineer, TXxDOT-Austin has expressed full support of the
beautification project which is located in Burnet County at the intersection of Highways
281 and 71.

Partnering
The Highland Lake Legacy Fund, an affiliate of Austin Community Foundation, is

staging to serve as the non-profit 501 ¢ 3 fund manager to allow tax deductible
contributions to support this two (2) year community funded highway beautification
project.

Seed Capital Sponsors. The Initial capital needed to launch Citizens for Scenic
Highways has come from local businesses that support the cause while still in the
conceptual stage.

Sponsors: Horseshoe Bay ACE Hardware, Shane Stewart STATE FARM
INSURANCE, and SiberTEX Graphic Arts

More information/map.
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RESOLUTION 2016-R-03B
SUPPORTING CITIZENS FOR SCENIC HIGHWAYS
2016/2017 BEAUTIFICATION PROJECT
CENTRAL TEXAS — GATEWAY TO THE HILL COUNTRY

BURNET COUNTY - TEXAS HIGHWAY 281 AND 71 INTERSECTION

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the City of Marble Falls, Burnet County, Texas incorporated in 1907 with a
current population in excess of 6,128 a major populations center in Burnet
County is known as the Bluebonnet Capital of Texas.

Burnet County, founded in 1852, population of in excess of 43,943, is one
of twenty-five Texas counties Texas Parks and Wildlife has identified as
counties in the Texas Hill Country region.

Burnet County is linked to international, national and state highway
systems via Texas Highway 281 (North and Southbound), Texas
Highway 71 (East and West bound) and Texas Highway 29 (East and
West Bound).

the intersection of Texas Highways 281 and Highway7l serves as a
Central Texas threshold to Hill Country counties from major population
centers North, East, and South of the region and serves as the major
traffic thoroughfare for commuters, tourists and business transportation
all vital to the economies of the Hill Country communities in the region.

Burnet County, and all Hill Country region counties, depend on the major
economic contribution of seasonal wildflower, hunting, Highland Lake and
resort recreational activities which attracts thousands annually to all
communities within the multi-county Hill Country region..

the TXDOT highway intersection of median, easement and cloverleaf
section comprise approximately 1,306,800 square feet (30 acres) of
grassy areas and native tree clusters.

a citizen volunteer effort proposed a highway beautification project to
TXDOT in October 2015 to include (Phase 1) vegetation management —
tree trimming, underbrush removal, brush and dead growth removal to
allow highlight of stately native trees, and (Phase 2) abundant wildflower
seeding in Fall 2016 and Fall of 2017.

for the purpose of this citizen proposed beautification project, this state

highway intersection is hereby designated the Central Texas - Gateway
to the Hill Country.
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WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) Burnet and Johnson
City Districts in Burnet and Blanco Counties have full jurisdiction on the
management and maintenance of State Highways 281 and 71 are
petitioned to support this beautification project

TXDOT, Johnson City District, Blanco County, elected in January 2016 to
initiate Phase 1, vegetation management, to be continued to completion
as TXDOT manpower and equipment schedule allows.

under the terms of a TXDOT Landscape Partnership agreement, the
volunteer citizen group, hereby known as Citizens for Scenic Texas
Highways will as “DONOR” raise funds from individuals, businesses and
major employers in the region to purchase wildflower seed mixes to
include Bluebonnet, Indian Paint Brush and Indian Blanket wildflowers.

DONOR will purchase wildflower seed mixes to be delivered to TXDOT
for planting by TXDOT maintenance crews in Fall of 2016 and Fall FO17 to
assure years of seasonal abundant displays of wildflower color in
medians, easements and cloverleaf sections this state highway
intersection.

the Central Texas - Gateway to the Hill Country Beautification Project will
enhance the region and serve as a welcome to thousands of commuters
and tourists who travel these roadways and make a critical contribution to
the economic base of the multi county Hill Country region.

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED, The City of Marble Falls supports the Central
Texas — Gateway to the Hill Country Beautification Project and encourages TXDOT to
support and facilitate its implementation to completion. Citizens of the City of Marble
Falls are encouraged to support this and all state and county agendas that assure safe
and beautiful roadways.

ATTEST:

John Packer, Mayor

Christina McDonald
City Secretary
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LADY BIRD'S LEGACY
. WILDFLOWER MiIx»

Native American Seed has partnered with the Lady Bird Johnson
Wildflower Center and the Austin American-Statesman to offer you
this legacy seed mix. Components of the mix are among Lady Bird’s
favorites, and are well-suited to Central Texas. :

Comprised of annuals and perennials, you will see blooms from
spring — early summer. Lyndon Baines Johnson championed scores
of environmental bills during his presidency of the United States. With
his wife, Lady Bird, at his side, the two worked tirelessly to clean up
America's highways, promote conservation and preserve the country's
natural landscapes.

We, at Native American Seed, are deeply honored to do our part to
sustain this national land stewardship legacy. A percentage of sales of
this mix will be donated to the Wildflower Center Seed Grant program
to buy seeds for Texas schools.

Texas Bluebonnet, Indian Blanket, Black-Eyed
Susan, Winecup, Purple Coneflower, Lemon Mint,
Prairie Verbena, Indian Paintbrush,

Pink Evening Primrose, Plains Coreopsis

Lady Bird's Legacy  Item #1814
Lawn & Garden Seeding Rate 20 Ibs / acre

1 1b /2000 sq ft— $44
D-pak / 500 sq ft — $24
Pkt / 20 sq ft— $5

Order Online * www.seedsource.com

Fulton Learning Center

Seed Grants
to Texas Schools

Seed grants are awarded to Texas
K-12 schools and can be used to:

¢ establish demonstration areas
* enhance wildflower sites
* other educational projects

www.wildflower.org/wildflowers |
3
g
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March 1, 2016
6. CONSENT AGENDA
(e) Approval of Resolution 2016-R-03A authorizing the submission of a grant

application to the Office of the Governor for FY 2016 State Homeland Security
Program Grant. Ted Young, Police Captain

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation

6(e)
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CITY OF

AMerble Falts

FEXAd

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo
March 1, 2016

Agenda Item No.: 6(e)
Presenter: Ted Young, Captain
Department: Police Department
Legal Review: Cd

AGENDA CAPTION |

Approval of Resolution 2016-R-03A authorizing the Police Department's request for
submission of the FY 2016 SHSP (State Homeland Security Program) application for
funds to purchase Communications equipment to upgrade the Marble Falls
Communications Center.

BACKGROUND |

Authorization for the submission of a grant to CAPCOG for the FY 2016 SHSP funds for
"0" matching funds in the amount of $170,000 to purchase and upgrade the Emergency
Communications Dispatch console stations. The funds will replace the current dispatch
console system with a newer upgraded system that will provide more capabilities and
capacity needed to enhance interoperable communications.

6(e) - Page 1 of 2



RESOLUTION 2016-R-03A

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS,
AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION
TO THE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, FOR FY 2016
STATE HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM GRANT.

WHEREAS, the City of Marble finds in the best interest of the citizens of Marble Falls that the
City of Marble Falls Communications Dispatch Console Project be operated for the Fiscal Year
2016, and

WHEREAS, the City of Marble Falls agrees to provide applicable matching funds for the project
if required by the FY 2016 State Homeland Security Program Grant application, and

WHEREAS, the City of Marble Falls agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of the Office of
the Governor Funds, the City of Marble Falls assures that the funds will be returned to the Office
of the Governor in full, and

WHEREAS, the City of Marble Falls designates the Mayor as the grantee authorized official.
The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, alter, reject or terminate the grant
on behalf of the applicant agency.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Marble Falls, Texas

approves submission of the grant application for the Marble Falls Communications Dispatch
Console Project to the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 1%t DAY OF MARCH, 2016 BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS.

Grant Number: 3026001

John Packer
Mayor
City of Marble Falls

Christina McDonald
City Secretary
City of Marble Falls

6(e) - Page 2 of 2



March 1, 2016
6. CONSENT AGENDA

(f) Approval of the cancellation of the March 15, 2016 regular meeting. Mike Hodge,
City Manager

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation
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CITY OF

AMerble Falts

FEXAd

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo
March 1, 2016

Agenda Item No.: 6(f)

Presenter: Mike Hodge, City Manager
Department: Administration

Legal Review: Cd

AGENDA CAPTION

Approval of the cancellation of the March 15, 2016 regular meeting.

BACKGROUND |

There are currently no items scheduled for the March 15 agenda. Staff is

recommending cancellation of the regular meeting. Also please note that this is the
week of MFISD Spring Break.

6(f) - Page 1 of 1



March 1, 2016
7. REGULAR AGENDA

(a) Discussion and Action on the acceptance of the FY 2014/15 Comprehensive
Annual Financial Audit. Margie Cardenas, Finance Director

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation
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CITY OF

AMarble Falls

TEXAS

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo
March 1, 2016

Agenda Item No.: 7(a)

Presenter: Margie Cardenas, Director of Finance
Department: Finance Department
Legal Review: O Not Applicable X

AGENDA CAPTION |

Discussion and Action on the acceptance of the FY 2014/15 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Audit.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

Chris Pruitt, C.P.A. from the firm of Pattillo, Brown and Hill will present the audit at the
council meeting on Tuesday, March 1, 2016.

The audit will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for
review. The review will determine if the audit merits the award of “Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting” for the FY 2014/15. We have received the award
since 2004 and strive each year so that we may continue to receive this recognized
award.

View Audit.

7 (a)- Page 1 of 1
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CITY OF

Marble 5

TEXAS ——

February 25,2016
Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and the Citizens of Marble Falls:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Marble Falls (the “City”)
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data, and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position
and results of operations of the various funds of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

As required by the City’s charter, the financial statements have been audited by the firm of
Pattillo, Brown & Hill, L.L.P., Certified Public Accountants. The goal of the independent audit
was to provide reasonable assurances that the financial statements of the City of Marble Falls for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, are free of material misstatement. The independent
audit involved examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the City of Marble Falls’ financial statements for fiscal year ended
September 30, 2015, are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

In developing and evaluating the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of internal accounting controls. These controls are designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. We believe that the City’s current
system of internal controls adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of
proper recording of financial transactions.

GAAP requires management to provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the independent
auditor’s report located at the front of the financial section of this report.

i
800 Third Street » Marble Falls, Texas 78654
Phone: (830) 693-3615 « Fax: (830) 693-6737



The City of Marble Falls’ financial policy is to maintain a minimum fund balance of 25% of the
current operations and maintenance budget for the City departments within the General Fund.
The Utility Fund emphasis is to provide sufficient funds to meet operating expenses and debt
payments. We will closely monitor the trend on our major sources of funding, such as: sales
taxes and property taxes; so that we may make adjustments if needed.

PROFILE OF THE CITY

Founded in 1887 by General Adam R. Johnson, Marble Falls is located in the heart of the Texas
Hill Country on the Colorado River. The falls, for which the town was named, were used as a
landmark by travelers and referred to as the “great falls” or the “marble falls” of the Colorado
River as early as 1817. Population estimates for the City of Marble Falls reached 1,800 by 1896
and the first City officials were elected in 1907, when a mayor-alderman form of government
was instituted.

Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the Mayor
and six (6) Council Members. The Mayor and Council are responsible, among other things, for
passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing board and committee members and hiring the
City Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal Judge. The City Manager is responsible for carrying
out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
City government, and for appointing heads of various departments. The Mayor and Council
Members are elected on an at-large, non-partisan basis and serve for a two-year term.

The City provides a full range of municipal services including public safety (police and fire)
maintenance of streets and infrastructure, water services, sanitation services, maintenance of the
treated waste distribution system, and leisure services (parks and recreation).

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The City of Marble Falls is centrally located 47 miles northwest of Austin and 85 miles north of
San Antonio, at the intersection of State Highway 281 and Farm Road 1431, in the middle of the
Highland Lakes area, the largest chain of lakes in Texas. Currently, the City contains
approximately 13.6 square miles.

Steady population growth has been experienced in the last decade with a present population
estimated in excess of 6,370. Current and future subdivisions are designed on oversized lots, as
well as smaller garden home areas, which result in spacious residential areas that complement
the coveted rural setting. The City serves as a retail and tourist hub to the county and its
surrounding area.

The Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation (MFEDC) was formed in 1991 to
spearhead the anticipated growth of the City. The MFEDC is funded by a voter approved, half
cent sales tax, which is used to offer grants and other economic incentives to existing and new
businesses. The MFEDC has successfully upgraded and improved the infrastructure of the City
in preparation for commercial and retail businesses locating in Marble Falls. The MFEDC was
voted favorably as a 4B corporation in 2007.



Budgetary Controls. The City Charter of the City of Marble Falls establishes the fiscal year as
October 1 through September 30. The Charter requires the City Manager to submit a proposed
budget and accompanying budget message to the City Council each year. The proposed budget is
presented to the City Council by the City Manager and Department Directors at a series of
budget work sessions. Copies of the proposed budget are made available to the public and the
press and the public hearing schedule is confirmed. Before the public hearings are held, notices
of the public hearings on the proposed budget are posted and published in the newspaper. After
public hearings at two consecutive regular City Council meetings, the Council may adopt the
proposed budget, with or without an amendment. The budget ordinance is to be adopted no later
than the 30" day of September and requires an affirmation vote of a majority of the Council. The
City maintains budgetary control by adopting an annual operating budget for the General Fund,
Debt Service Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Proprietary Fund and Capital Project Fund. Revisions
that increase the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by Council.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City
of Marble Falls for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2014. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must
satisfy both Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

Acknowledgements. The preparation of this report could not be accomplished on a timely basis
without the efficient and dedicated endeavors of the entire staff of the City’s Finance Department
and our independent auditors. We would like to express our sincere appreciation to all
contributing employees. We would also wish to thank our Mayor and the members of the City
Council for their support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a
responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Mike Hodge
City Manager
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PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS B BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Marble Falls, Texas
Marble Falls, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Marble Falls, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marble Falls, Texas, as of September
30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note I to the financial statements, in 2015 the City adopted new
accounting guidance, Governmental Account Standards (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and Governmental
Account Standards (GASB) Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 — 11 and 49 —
54 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.



Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 25, 2016, on our consideration of the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Oevillp, Bpo—* W LLe

Waco, Texas
February 25, 2016
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As Management of the City of Marble Falls, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2015. This information is not intended to be a complete statement of the City’s financial condition.
We recommend and encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
the accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City of Marble Falls exceeded its liabilities as of September 30,
2015, by $24,651,741 (net position). Of this amount, $(3,447,970) is unrestricted net
position.

e The City’s net position decreased by $2,067,600.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Marble Falls governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $8,400,727. $1,259,708 of this amount is
unassigned and available for use within the City’s fund designation and policy.

e As of September 30, 2015, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$1,501,853 or 17.67% of total General Fund expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. This statement combines and consolidates governmental funds current financial resources
(short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations. Other non-financial
factors should also be taken into consideration, such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the
condition of the City’s infrastructure (i.e. roads, drainage improvements, storm sewer and water lines,
etc.), to assess the overall financial condition of the City.



The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during
the fiscal year. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when
cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but not used
compensated absences). Both the statement of net position and the statement of activities are prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accounting as opposed to the modified accrual basis used in prior reporting
models.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees (business-type activities).

e Governmental activities include most of the City’s basic services (general
government, public safety, public works and culture and recreation). Property taxes,
sales taxes, and franchise fees primarily finance these activities.

e Business-type activities include the City’s water and sewer system. Charges for
services cover all or most of the cost for these services.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used by state and local governments
to control and manage money for particular purposes and to ensure finance-related legal requirements.
The City uses two fund types — governmental and proprietary.

e Governmental funds — Similar to the governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental funds focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. The governmental fund statement provides a detailed short-term view of
the City’s general government operations and helps you determine whether resources
are available in the near future to finance City programs. Comparing the information
presented for governmental funds with the information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements will help the reader to better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
The governmental funds balance sheet, statement of revenue and expenditures, and
changes in fund balances include a reconciliation to provide such comparison.

The City maintains 16 governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Economic
Development Corporation Fund, Debt Service Fund, and General Improvements, all
of which are considered to be major funds. The other 12 funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements found in this
report.



e Proprietary funds — The City maintains one proprietary fund. The City uses the
Enterprise Fund for water and sewer operations. The Enterprise Fund reports the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statement.

Reporting the City’s Fiduciary Responsibility

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the LaVentana Public Improvement District Trust Fund. All of
the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position. The activities of this fund are excluded from the City’s government-wide
financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used for their intended purpose. The
basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 — 24 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents combining
and individual fund statements and schedules that further support the information in the financial
statements. These statements are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The City’s net assets exceed liabilities by $24.7 million as of September 30, 2015. The largest portion of
the City’s net position reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land, building, equipment,
improvements, construction in progress and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. It should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS’ NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current and other assets $ 11,782946 § 11,999,759  $( 688,420) $ 1,470,861 § 11,094,526 $ 13,470,620
Capital assets 35,526,788 38,059,403 36,376.692 35,890,347 71,903,480 73,949,750
Total assets B 47,309,734 50,059,162 35,688,272 37,361,208 B 82,998,006 87,420,370
Deferred outflows of resources 426,136 133,103 543,859 121,611 969,995 ) 254,714
Current liabilities 1,308,849 1,346,059 1,082,264 1,229,134 2,391,113 2,575,193
Noncurrent liabilities 38,290,135 39,623,707 18,625,115 20,259,532 56,915,250 59,883,239
Total liabilities 39,598,984 ) 40,969,766 19,707,379 21,488,666 59,306,363 62,458,432
Deferred inflows of resources - 8,331 - 1,566 - o 9,897
Net position:
Net investment,
in capital assets 1,772,013 5,009,790 19,231,630 19,702,970 21,003,643 24,712,760
Restricted 7,096,068 8,269,197 - - 7,096,068 8,269,197
Unrestricted ( 739,526) 4,056,488) ( 2,708 444) | 3,708,817) ( 3.447970) | 7,765,305)
Total net position $ 8,128,555 § 0222499 § 16,523,186 $ 15,994,153 $ 24,651,741 $ 25,216,652

The restricted portion of the City’s net position (28.8%) represents resources that are subject to external

restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is
$(3,447,970).

Analysis of the City’s Operations

The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations for the year ended September 30, 2015.
Governmental activities decreased the City of Marble Falls’ net position by ($2,354,675), accounting for
a 9.3% decrease in net position. The decrease in net position went from a decrease of 4.9% in the prior
year to a decrease of 9.3% in FY 2015. This decrease is larger than last year’s decrease by $1,881,209.
The decrease in the net position was due largely to transfers of ($1,337,745) between governmental
activities and business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by
$287,675 accounting for a 1.1% increase in net position. The increase in the business-type activities was
due to the increase of transfers with governmental activities.



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS’ CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 763,516 $ 716,522 $ 4,091,722 § 4,106,512 § 4,855,238 § 4,823,034
Operating grants
and contributions 201,338 499,805 - - 201,338 499,805
Capital grants
and contributions - - 155,000 379,524 155,000 379,524
General revenues:
Property taxes 4,500,973 4281225 - - 4,500,973 4,281,225
Sales taxes 7,436,165 7,185,011 - - 7,436,165 7,185,011
Franchise taxes 595,443 521,249 - - 595,443 521,249
Other taxes 675,904 584,337 - - 675,904 584,337
Investment earnings 7,376 7,975 17,544 17,620 24,920 25,595
Gain on sale of assets 80,571 117,589 - - 80,571 117,589
Miscellaneous 143,445 125269 - - 143.445 125,269
Total revenues 14,404,731 14,038,982 4,264,266 4,503,656 18,668,997 18,542,638
Expenses:
General government 3,909,769 3,615,994 - - 3,909,769 3,615,994
Public safety 5,580,292 5,346,306 - . 5,580,292 5,346,306
Public works 3,222,080 3,236,700 - - 3,222,080 3,236,700
Culture and recreation 1,225,259 1,195,731 - - 1,225,259 1,195,731
Interest on long-term
debt 1,484,261 1,355,703 - - 1,484,261 1,355,703
Water and wastewater - - 5,314,936 5,612,611 5,314,936 5,612,611
Total expenses 15,421,661 14,750,434 5,314,936 5,612,611 20,736,597 20,363,045
Increases (decreases) in net
assets before transfers ( 1,016,930) ( 711,452) ( 1,050,670) ( 1,108,955) 2,067,600) ( 1,820,407)
Transfers ( 1,337.745) 237,986 1,337,745  ( 237.986) - B -
Change in net assets ( 2,354,675) ( 473,466) 287,075 ( 1,346,941) 2,067,600) ( 1,820,407)
Net assets, beginning 9,222,499 10,311,039 15,994,153 17,731,830 25,216,652 28,042,869
Prior period adjustment 1,260,731  ( 615,074) 241,958 ( 390,736) 1,502,689  ( 1,005,810)
Net assets, ending $ 8,128,555 § 9222499 § 16,523,186 § 15,994,153 § 24,651,741 § 25,216,652

Government Funds

In the General Fund, fund balance increased by $220,591. The increase was due mainly to an increase in
sales taxes and property taxes for FY 2015.

The Economic Development Corporation Fund balance decreased by -$974,454. The decrease is due to
a retention and recruitment payment to Baylor Scott & White during the year.

The Debt Service Fund balance decreased by $(254,864) due to an increase in debt principal.

The General Improvements Fund balance decreased by $(281,256). The decrease was due mainly to a

expenditures for the Downtown Master Plan Project.



Proprietary Fund

Unrestricted net position of the proprietary fund (water and utility) was ($2,708,444). The net position of
the Water and Utility Fund increased by $287,075. This increase was due to the reduced amount of
transfers to general fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City made revisions to the original appropriations approved by the City Council. These changes
resulted in an increase in budgeted expenditures in the amount of $135,680 from the original budget of
$8,406,546 to the revised budget of $8,542,226 or 1.6% increase. The majority of this increase was due
to an increase in general government non-departmental for purchased and contracted services.

The variance between the final amended budget and actual expenditures was a positive $43,608. The
General Government group actual expenditures were below budget by $281. The expenses were for
personnel services in the Administration Department. Additionally, Public Safety expenditures were
below budget by $276. This was mainly due to personnel services costs in court, police and code
departments.

Capital Assets

e Continued engineering design of the Water Plant Upgrade. Total spent in FY 2015
was $33,620.

e Continued the construction phase of the Water Plant Upgrade. Total spent in FY 2015
was $1,632,083.

e Completed construction work on the new 8” water line at Los Escondidos at a cost of
$513,925.

e Continued with our annual street improvement plan. Total spent in FY 15 was
$76,827.

e Completed improvements at Westside Park, Johnson Park and other park
improvements. Total spent in FY 2015 was $25,549.

e Purchased real estate for future Downtown project by the Economic Development
Corporation. Total spent in FY 2015 was $92,942.

e Began engineering design of the Wastewater Plant at a cost of $112,603 and
construction phase at a cost of $89,743.

e Began Downtown Master Plan improvements at a cost of $121,869.
e Began Architectural Phase of the Public Safety Building at a cost of $57,417.

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements on
pages 36 — 37.



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS’ CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Land $ 8,553,640 3 8467279 § 681,006 § 681,006 $ 9,234,646 $ 9,148,285
Buildings and improvements 51,986,138 50,232,361 55,449,038 51,006,882 107,435,176 101,239,243
Machinery and equipment 6,619,909 6,533,603 1,152,175 1,152,175 7,772,084 7,685,778
Construction in progress - 1,252,187 - 1,894,490 - 3,146,677
Less: accumulated
depreciation ( 31,632,899) ( 28,420,027)  ( 20,905,527)  ( 18,844,206) 52,538,426) ( 47,270,233)

Total capital asscts, net $ 35,526,788  § 38,059.403 § 36,376,692 $ 35,890,347 § 71,903,480 $ 73,949,750

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt and notes payable of $54,505,000.
Of this amount, $36,735,000 represents bonded debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City and
$17,770,000 represents payables secured by water and wastewater revenues.

OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR-END

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Certificates of obligation $ 36,735,000 § 38,115,000 § 17,770,000 $ 19,730,000 $ 54,505,000 § 57,845,000

Total $ 36,735,000 $ 38,115,000 $ 17,770,000 $ 19,730,000 $ 54,505,000 § 57,845,000

The City’s General Obligation, Tax and Certificates of Obligation bond ratings are listed below.

Standard
& Poor's

General Obligation Bonds AA-

Additional information on the City’s long term-debt can be found in the notes to financial statements of
this report on pages 38 — 40.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The entire area surrounding the City of Marble Falls continues to experience unprecedented growth.
The City’s population is estimated to be in excess of 7,200 in 2015. The City is continuing to focus on
Economic Development initiatives.

The City’s largest source of revenue in the General Fund is Sales Tax. The City realized an increase of
6% from the prior year revenue of $5,388,759 to $5,577,124. The 2016 estimate is conservatively
projected at $5,744,437. The Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation is funded by a voter
approved, half-cent sales tax, which is used to offer grants and other economic incentives to existing and
new businesses. The City’s financial management policies, sets the guideline to maintain the fund
balance and net position of the various operating funds at levels sufficient to protect the City’s
creditworthiness as well as its financial position from unforeseeable emergencies.

The City’s second largest source of revenue in the General Fund is ad valorem taxes. The City’s tax rate
is $0.6483. This rate consists of a maintenance and operations (M&O) tax rate of $0.1881 and an
Interest and Sinking (debt service) tax rate of $0.4602. The rate was set based on a net position value of
$662,503,064. The assessed values increased about 4% for FY 2016.

Water revenues for 2016 are budgeted at $2,603,923 which is a 5% increase over the prior year. Sewer
revenues are budgeted at $1,463,975, representing a 15% decrease over the prior year. The City of
Marble Falls did not increase water or sewer rates for FY 2016.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Finance Department;
800 Third Street; Marble Falls, Texas 78654 or call Margie Cardenas (830) 693-3615 or e-mail
mcardenas@marblefallstx.gov.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6,113,462 $ . $ 6,113,462
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Taxes 1,500,825 B 1,500,825
Customer accounts 1,228,790 653,733 1,882,523
Other 2,068 - 2,068
Due from other governments 31,060 - 31,060
Internal balances 1,869,793 ( 1,869,793) -
Inventories - 335,713 335,713
Prepaid items 15,681 - 15,681
Net pension asset 1,021,267 191,927 1,213,194
Capital assets:
Land 8,553,640 681,006 9,234,646
Buildings and improvements 51,986,138 55,449,038 107,435,176
Machinery and equipment 6,619,909 1,152,175 7,772,084
Accumulated depreciation (  31,632.899) {  20.905.527) ( 52,538,4206)
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 35,526,788 36,376.692 71,903,480
Total assets 47,309,734 35,688.272 82,998,006
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow related to pensions 307,482 62,814 370,296
Deferred loss on bond refunding 118,654 481,045 599,699
Total deferred outflows of resources 426,136 543,859 969,995
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 811,363 387,278 1,198,641
Accrued liabilities 174,275 32,492 206,767
Due to others 73,463 36,395 109,858
Customer deposits 28,018 478,863 506,881
Accrued interest 221,730 147,236 368,966
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 2,890,357 875,469 3,765,826
Due in more than one year 35,399,778 17,749,646 53,149,424
Total liabilities 39,598,984 19,707,379 59,306,363
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow related to pensions 8.331 1,566 9,897
Total deferred inflows of resources 8,331 1,566 9,897
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,772,013 19,231,630 21,003,643
Restricted for:
Economic development 2,089,025 - 2,089,025
Debt service 88,358 B 88,358
Public safety 145,787 B 145,787
Culture and recreation 407,351 - 407,351
Capital improvements 4,365,547 - 4,365,547
Unrestricted ( 739,526) ( 2.708.444) ( 3.447,970)
Total net position $ 8,128,555 $ 16,523,186 $ 24,651,741

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Setvices Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 3,909,769 $ 318,716 $ 110,000 $ -
Public safety 5,580,292 168,410 78,423 -
Public works 3,222,080 136,919 12,000 -
Culture and recreation 1,225,259 139,471 915 -
Interest on long-term debt 1484261 - - -
Total governmental activities 15,421,661 763,516 201,338 -
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 5,314,936 4,091,722 - 155,000
Total business-type activities 5,314,936 4,091,722 2 155,000
Total primary government $ 20,736,597 $ 4,855,238 $ 201,338 $ 155,000

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property, levied for general purposes
Property, levied for debt service
Sales
Franchise
Other
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning

Prior period adjustment

Net position, beginning as restated

Net position, ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities
$( 3,481,053) $ -
( 5,333,459) -
( 3,073,161) -
( 1,084,873) -
( 1.484.261) -
( 14,456.807) -

- ( 1,068.214)

- ( 1,068.214)

( 14,456,807) ( 1,068,214)
1,393,992 .
3,106,981 B
7,436,165 B
595,443 -
675,904 -

7,376 17,544
80,571 E
143,445 -

( 1,337,745) 1,337,745

12,102,132 1,355,289

( 2,354,675) 287,075

9,222.499 15,994,153

1,260,731 241,958

10,483.230 16,236,111

$ 8,128,555 $ 16,523,186

— S

(

Total

3,481,053)
5,333,459)
3,073,161)
1,084,873)

1.484,261)
14.456,807)

1068.214)

(

(

1,068,214)

15,525,021)

1,393,992
3,106,981
7,436,165
595,443
675,904
24,920
80,571
143,445

13,457,421

2,067,600)

25,216,652

1,502,689

26,719,341

24,651,741
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Economic
Development Debt
General Corporation Service
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 236,961 $ 1,849,443 116,506
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
Property taxes 3,259 - 93,323
Other taxes 927,270 304,585 B
Accounts 173,132 - -
Other 18 2,050 -
Due from other governments 31,060 - -
Due from other funds 1,156,908 - -
Prepaid items 15,681 - .
Total assets 2,544,289 2,156,078 209,829
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 681,014 57,221 -
Accrued liabilities 166,743 7,532 -
Due to other funds - - 51,237
Due to others 71,163 2,300 -
Customer deposits 28,018 - -
Total liabilities 946,938 67,053 51,237
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 1,066 - 88,358
Unavailable revenue - court fines and fees 78,751 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 79,817 - 88,358
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 15,681 - -
Restricted - 2,089,025 70,234
Unassigned 1,501,853 - -
Total fund balances 1,517,534 2,089,025 70,234
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 2,544,289 $ 2,156,078 209,829

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable

resources in the governmental funds balance sheet, but are recognized as revenue in the statement of activities.

The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are not included in the fund financial statements, but are included in the

governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the

funds. Losses on refunding of bonds and the premium on issuance of bonds payable are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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General Other Total

Improvements Governmental Governmental
$ 3,584,860 $ 275,692 $ 6,063,462
- - 96,582
- 172,388 1,404,243
- - 173,132
. - 2,068
- - 31,060
800,680 241,237 2,198,825
- - 15,681
4,385,540 689,317 9,985,053
37,729 35,399 811,363
. - 174,275
- 277,795 329,032
- - 73,463
- - 28,018
37.729 313,194 1,416,151
- - 89,424
- - 78,751
- - 168,175
- - 15,681
4,347,811 618,268 7,125,338
- ( 242.145) 1,259,708
4,347,811 376,123 8,400,727

$ 4,385,540 $ 689,317

35,526,788
1,223,833
50,000

( 37.072.793)
S___ 8128555
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Economic
Development Debt
General Corporation Service
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,394,158 $ - $ 3,120,734
Sales taxes 5,577,124 1,859,042 -
Hotel/motel taxes - - -
Mixed beverage taxes 47,303 - -
Franchise fees 595,443 - -
Fines and forfeitures 158,446 - -
Permits and fees 306,348 52,183 -
Intergovernmental 194,835 - -
Investment earnings 2,364 3,486 1,180
Other 151,999 e O N -
Total revenues 8,428,020 1,914,711 3.121,914
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,515,935 1,834,269 -
Public safety 5,066,063 - -
Public works 1,006,873 - -
Culture and recreation 715,925 - -
Capital outlay 193,822 150,830 -
Debt service:
Principal - 505,000 2,075,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 221,331 1,320,008
Bond issuance costs = = -
Total expenditures 8,498,618 2,711,430 3,395,008
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ( 70,598) ( 796.719) ( 273.094)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 3,306 77,265 -
Transfers in 375,000 - 218,230
Transfers out ( 87,117) ( 255,000) ( 200.000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 291.189 ( 177,735) 18,230
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 220,591 ( 974,454) ( 254,864)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,296,943 3.063.479 325,098
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 1,517,534 $ 2,089,025 $ 70,234

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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General Other Total

Improvements Governmental Governmental

$ - $ = $ 4,514,892
_ - 7,436,166

- 625,853 625,853

- - 47,303

- - 595,443

- 97,921 256,367

= . 358,531

12,000 142,575 349,410

- 346 7,376

- - 151.999

12,000 866,695 14,343,340

- 167,847 3,518,051

205,872 36,239 5,308,174

- - 1,006,873

- 358,632 1,074,557

86,984 25,550 457,186

- - 2,580,000

s - 1,541,339

400 - 400

293,256 588.268 15,486,580
( 281,256) 278,427 ( 1.143.240)

- - 80,571

- 37.117 630,347
- ( 250,975) ( 793,092)
- ( 213.858) ( 82,174)
( 281,256) 64,569 ( 1,225,414)
4,629,067 311,554 9,626,141

$ 4,347,811 $ 376,123 $ 8,400,727
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (pages 12 - 13) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (pages 16 - 17) $(  1,225,414)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (  1,280,428)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds. ( 19,180)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items. 1,333,018

Certain pension expenditures are not expended in the government-wide financial statements and
recorded as deferred resource outflows. This item relates to contributions made after the
measurement date. Additionally, a portion of the City’s unrecognized deferred resource outflows
related to the pension liability were amortized. 59,687

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. 25,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. ( 1,247358)
Change in net position of governmental activities (pages 12 - 13) B 2,354,675)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ - $ 50,000
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 653,733 -
Inventories 335,713 -
Total current assets 989446 50,000
Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset 191,927 -
Capital assets:
Land 681,006 -
Buildings and improvements 55,449,038 -
Machinery and equipment 1,152,175 -
Accumulated depreciation ( 20,905,527) -
Total capital assets 36,376,692 -
Total noncurrent assets 36,568,619 B
Total assets 37,558,065 50,000
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow related to pensions 62,814 B
Deferred loss on bond refunding 481,045 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 543,859 B
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 387,278 -
Accrued liabilities 32,492 B
Due to other funds 1,869,793 -
Customer deposits 478,863 -
Due to others 36,395 -
Accrued interest 147,236 -
Compensated absences 60,469 -
Bonds payable 815,000 -
Total current liabilities 3.827.526 -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 181,407 -
Bonds payable 17,549,262 -
OPEB net pension obligation 18,977 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 17,749,646 -
Total liabilities ) 21,577,172 -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow related to pensions 1,566 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,566 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 19,231,630 .
Unrestricted ( 2,708.444) 50,000
Total net position $ 16,523,186 $ 50,000

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement
OPERATING REVENUES
Water and utility charges $ 3,990,243 % -
Miscellaneous 101,479 -
Total operating revenues 4,091,722 -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 1,161,330 -
Supplies 453,280 -
Repairs and maintenance 460,370 -
Purchased and contracted services 368,602 E
Other services and charges 22,136 -
Depreciation 2,061,321 -
Total operating expenses 4,527,039 -
OPERATING LOSS ( 435,317) -
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 17,544 -
Interest and fiscal charges ( 787,897) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ( 770,353) E
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1,355,000 -
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 149,330 -
TRANSFERS OUT ( 385,000) -
TRANSFERS IN 522,745 25,000
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 287,075 25,000
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 15,994,153 25,000
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 241,958 -
NET POSITION, BEGINNING AS RESTATED 16,236,111 25,000
NET POSITION, ENDING $ 16,523,186 §$ 50,000

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Activities
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers and users $ 4,080,031 S -
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services ( 107,095) -
Cash paid to employees for services ( 1,155,789) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,817,147 -
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to other funds ( 385,000) -
Transfers from other funds 522,745 25,000
Net cash used by noncapital financing activities 137,745 25.000
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets ( 2,547,666) -
Principal repayments on long-term debt ( 760,000) -
Interest and fiscal charges paid on debt C 369.720) -
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities ( 3.677,386) =
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and investment earnings o 17,544 -
Net cash provided by investing activities 17,544 -
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ( 704,950) 25,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 704,950 25,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING $ - $ 50,000
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash used by operating activities:
Operating loss $( 435317)  § -
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,061,321 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Customer receivable 12,216 -
Other receivable 88
Inventory 14,160 -
Net pension asset ( 191,927)
Deferred outflow related to pensions ( 62,814) -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable ( 186,296) -
Accrued liabilities 5,541 -
OPEB net pension obligation ( 18,726) -
Due to other funds 1,643,701 -
Customer deposits 19,534 -
Due to others 2,591 -
Deferred inflow related to pensions 1,566
Compensated absences payable ( 48,491 -
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,817,147 $ -
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions of capital assets from government $ 1,355,000 $ -

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Business-type

Governmental

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

LaVentana PID
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,141
Total assets 7,141
NET POSITION
Held in trust for LaVentana PID $ 7,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

LaVentana PID
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS

Property tax assessment $ 16,116
Investment earnings 11,418
Total additions 27,534

DEDUCTIONS
Miscellaneous expense 27,500
Total deductions 27,500
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 34
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 7,107
NET POSITION, ENDING $ 7,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Marble Falls is a home rule municipality operating under its own charter since August
9, 1986. The charter provides that the City operate under the council/manager form of government.
The City Manager, appointed by the seven-member elected Council, is the Chief Administrative
Officer of the City. The City provides the following services: public safety, street maintenance,
refuse collection, recreation programs, municipal court, public health, community development,
public improvements, water and sewer services, and general administrative services.

Reporting Entity

As required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASBS) No. 14 and 39,
these financial statements have been prepared based on considerations regarding the potential for
inclusion of other entities, organizations, or functions as part of the City’s financial reporting
entity.

Consideration regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or functions in
the City’s financial reporting entity is based on criteria prescribed by GASBS No. 14 and 39.
These same criteria are evaluated in considering whether the City is a part of any other
governmental or other type of reporting entity. The overriding elements associated with
prescribed criteria considered in determining that the City’s financial reporting entity status is
that of a primary government are that it has a separately elected governing body; it is legally
separate; and it is financially independent of other state and local governments. Additional
prescribed criteria under GASB No. 14 and No. 39 include considerations pertaining to
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and considerations
pertaining to other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with
the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

As a result of applying the entity definition criteria of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, the City has included the Economic Development Corporation as a component unit in
these financial statements. The Corporation is presented as a blended component unit due to the
fact that the Economic Development Corporation’s Board is substantively the same as the City
Council. Additionally, as the City is considered a primary government for financial reporting
purposes, its activities are not considered a part of any other governmental or other type of
reporting entity. Complete financial statements for the Corporation may be obtained at the
entity’s administrative offices.
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Government-wide Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenue are reported instead as general revenue.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate

columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenue to be available if collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well
as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only
when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the City.
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The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

The Economic Development Corporation Fund is used to account for the use of 4B
sales tax revenues that must be used in compliance with statutory restrictions set forth
by the state legislature.

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for revenue collected for purposes of paying
interest on, and retiring, long-term debt including bonds, long-term tax notes, etc.

The General Improvements Fund is used to account for debt issues that were
received for streets and drainage, public works, parks, water and sewer capital
projects.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Water and Utility Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s water
and wastewater operations.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds account equipment replacement services provided to other
departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in
trust for individuals, private organizations and other governments.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and
utility function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Water and Utility Enterprise Fund are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments include cash on hand, deposits with financial institutions, certificates of
deposit, and a privately managed public funds investment pool (LOGIC).

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, the City’s general policy is to report money market
investments and short-term participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost
and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment contract using a cost-based measure.
However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the
credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments
are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term
“short-term” refers to investments, which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of
purchase. The term “nonparticipating” means that the investment’s value does not vary with
market interest rate changes.

The City maintains a pooled cash and investments account for all funds of the City. Each fund’s
positive equity in the pooled cash account is presented as “cash and investments” in the financial
statements. Negative cash balances have been reclassified and are reflected as interfund accounts
payable. Interest income and interest expense are allocated to each respective individual fund
monthly based on their representative fund balances.

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advance to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other
funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available
for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade
accounts receivable in excess of 180 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for
uncollectibles. The property tax receivable allowance is equal to 10 percent of outstanding
property taxes at September 30, 2015.
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Ad valorem property taxes attach as enforceable liens as of January 1. The City’s property tax is
levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed on the previous January 1 for all real and
personal property located in the City. Property taxes are payable on October 1 and are considered
delinquent on February 1. The adjusted tax levy for October 2014 was $4,469,957. The tax
assessment of October 1, 2014, sets a tax levy at $.06483 per $100 of assessed valuation at 100%
of assumed market value. Of this amount, $.04497 was allocated to debt service.

Legislation has been passed by the Texas Legislature that affects the method of property
assessment and tax collection in the City. This legislation, with certain exceptions, exempts
intangible personal property and household goods. In addition, this legislation creates a “Property
Tax Code” and provides, among other things, for the establishment of countywide appraisal
districts and for a state property tax board, which commenced operation in January 1980.

The value of property within the appraisal district must be reviewed at least every three years.
The City may challenge appraised values established by the appraisal district through various
appeals and, if necessary, legal action. Under this legislation, the City continues to set tax rates
on City property. However, if the effective tax rate, excluding tax rates for bonds and other
contractual obligations and adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the rate for the previous
year by more than 8%, qualified voters of the City may petition for an election to determine
whether to limit the tax rate to no more than 8% above the tax rate of the previous year.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded
at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 20-50
Improvements 5-50
Equipment 5-10
Water and sewer system 40-50

General infrastructure assets acquired prior to October 1, 2004, are not reported in the basic
statements. General infrastructure assets include all roads, bridges, and other infrastructure assets
acquired subsequent to October 1, 2004,

Compensated Absences

The City’s employees earn vacation and sick leave which may either be taken or accumulated, up
to certain amounts, until paid upon resignation or retirement. All vacation, comp time, personal
leave, and sick leave pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. Upon termination, an employee is paid for 100% of their accrued
vacation, comp time, and personal leave pay and for 50% of accrued sick leave pay.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The City has the following items that qualify for reporting in
this category.

e Deferred charges on refunding — A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference

in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
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e Pension contributions after measurement date — These contributions are deferred and
recognized in the following fiscal year.

e Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension assets — This difference is deferred
and amortized over a closed five year period.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statements element, deferred
inflows or resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has
two types of items classified as deferred inflows of resources. One of which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly,
the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two sources: property taxes and municipal
court fines. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period
that the amounts become available. The other item is only recorded in the full accrual basis of
accounting and results from the difference between expected and actual pension expense. This
difference is deferred and recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members
determined as of the measurement date.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and
liabilities. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds.
Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through
the enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Prior Period Adjustments

The GASB has issued Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27,” which became effective for fiscal year 2015. This
statement changes the focus of pension accounting for employers from whether they are
responsibly funding their plan over time to a point-in-time liability that is reflected in the
employer’s financial statements for any actuarially unfunded portion of pension benefits earned
to date.
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The implementation of Statement No. 68 resulted restatement of beginning net position for the
elimination of the previously reported net pension obligation, the recording of the beginning net
pension liability and the beginning deferred outflow for contributions made after the
measurement date. Prospectively applying these changes results in the adjustments below.

Statement of Revenues,

Government-wide Expenses and Changes in
Statement of Activities Net Position-Proprietary Funds
Governmental Business-type Utility
Activities Activities Fund
Net position at September 30, 2014,
as previously reported $ 9,222,499 § 15,994,153 $ 15,994,153
Recording of net pension liability
as of September 30, 2014 1,021,267 191,927 191,927
Deferral for pension contributions
made after the measurement date 239,464 50,031 50,031
Net position at September 30, 2014,
as restated $ 10,483,230 § 16,236,111 § 16,236,111

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains, “Long-term
liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $(37,072,793) difference are as follows:

General obligation bonds $(  32,020,000)
Sales tax revenue bonds ( 4,715,000)
Deferred loss on refunding debt issuance 118,654

Bond premiums ( 558,633)
TMRS net pension asset 1,320,418

OPEB net pension obligation ( 215,075)
Compensated absences ( 781,427)
Accrued interest payable ( 221,730)

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total
governmental funds to arrive at net assets -
governmental activities $C  37,072,793)
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Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of
Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental fund and
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains, “Governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of
this $(1,280,428) difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 1,926,444
Depreciation expense ( 3.,206,872)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds to atrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities $( 1,280,428

Another element of that reconciliation states, “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.” The details of this
$(19,180) difference are as follows:

Property taxes $( 13,920)
Municipal court ( 5,260)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities B( 19,180)

Another element of that reconciliation states, “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this $(1,333,018) difference are as follows:

General obligation debt payments $( 2,580,000)
Reclassification of general obligation debt from Water Fund 1,200,000
OPEB net pension obligation 46,982

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net

assets of governmental activities $( 1,333,018)
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Deficit Fund Balances

As of September 30, 2015, the following funds had deficit fund balances:

Special revenue funds

2006 TCDP Grant $(  26,743)

Flood Buy Back ( 175)

Amy Young Barrier Grant ( 18,399
Capital projects

2007 Flood Disaster ( 196,828)

These deficits are expected to be funded with future revenues in their respective funds.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

Deposits and Investments

As of September 30, 2015, the City had the following investments:

Fair Weighted Average
Investment Type Value Maturity (Days)
Logic $ 783,991 37

The Public Funds Investment Act (government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions
in the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate
policies. Among other things, it requires the City to adopt, implement and publicize an
investment policy. That policy must address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and
liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5)
expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7)
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the
portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences for
certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the U. S.
Treasury, certain U. S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain
municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers
acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and
(10) common trust funds. The Act also requires the City to have independent auditors perform
test procedures related to investment practices as provided by the Act. The City is in substantial
compliance with the requirements of the Act and with local policies.
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Public Funds Investment Pools

Public funds investment pools in Texas (“Pools”) are established under the authority of the
Interlocal Cooperation Act Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the
provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act (the “Act”), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government
Code. In addition to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of
principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool
and other persons who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise
the pool; 2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAAm or an equivalent rating
by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and 3) maintain the market value of its
underlying investment portfolio within one-half of one percent of the value of its shares.

The City’s investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share
of the Pool’s underlying portfolio, unless the Pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at
share value. A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and
does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940.

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may not be returned to it. State and City statutes require that all deposits in
financial institutions be fully collateralized by U. S. Government Obligations or its agencies and
instrumentalities or direct obligations of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities that have a fair
value of not less than the principal amount of deposits. As of September 30, 2015, $734,650 of the
City’s $1,234,650 deposit balance was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution. The remaining balance, $500,000, was covered by FDIC insurance.

Credit Risk. It is the City’s policy to limit its investments to investment types with an investment
quality rating not less than A or its equivalent by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Both of the City’s investment pool are rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s Investors
Service.

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to

declines in fair market values by limiting the average dollar-weighted maturity of its portfolio to a
maximum of 365 days.
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Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Governmental Proprietary
Economic
Development Debt Nonmajor Water
General Corporation Service Governmental _ and Utility Total

Receivables:

Property taxes $ 3,621 % - $ 103,692 $ - $ - $ 107,313

Other taxes 927,270 304,585 - 172,388 - 1,404,243

Customer accounts 322,131 - - - 794,843 1,116,974

Other 18 2,050 - - - 2,068
Gross receivables 1,253,040 306,635 103,692 172,388 794,843 2,630,598
Less: allowance for

uncollectibles 149,361 - 10,369 - 141,110 300,840

Net total receivables  $ 1,103,679 § 306,635 § 93,323 §_ 172,388 $ 653,733 $ 2,329,758

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Government activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 8467279 § 86,361 § - $ 8,553,640
Construction in progress 1,252,187 - ( 1,252,187) -
Total assets not being depreciated 9,719,466 86,361 ( 1,252,187) 8,553,640

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 50,232,361 1,753,777 - 51,986,138
Machinery and equipment 6,533,603 86,306 - 6,619,909
Total capital assets being depreciated 56,765,964 1,840,083 - 58,606,047
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements ( 22,356,936) ( 2,944,439) B (  25301.373)
Machinery and equipment ( 6,069001) ( 262,433) - ( 6,331.524)
Total accumulated depreciation ( 28.426,027) ( 3,206872) - ( 31.632,899)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 28,339,937 ( 1,366,789) - 26,973,148
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 38,059,403  $(_ 1,280428) $( 1252,187) $__ 35,526,788
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Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 681,006 $ - $ - $ 681,006
Construction in progress 1,894,490 - ( 1.894.490) -
Total assets not being depreciated 2,575,496 - ( 1,894.490) 681,006

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 51,006,882 4,442,156 E 55,449,038
Machinery and equipment 1,152,175 - - = 1,152,175
Total capital assets being depreciated 52,159,057 4,442,156 - 56,601,213
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements ( 17,775,045) ( 2,028,978) - ( 19.804,023)
Machinery and equipment ( Lo69,161)  ( 32,343) - ( 1,101,504)
Total accumulated depreciation (18,844.206) ( 2,061.321) - ( 20905,527)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 33,314,851 2,380,835 - 35,695,686
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 35890347 § 2,380,835 $( 1.894.490) $ 36,376,692

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 643,876
Public safety 216,657
Public works 2,206,538
Culture and recreation 139,801

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,206,872

Business-type activities:

Water and utility $ 2,061,321

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 2,061,321

Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2015 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Debt service $ 51,237
General Nonmajor governmental 271,795
General Water and utility 827,876
Nonmajor governmental Water and utility 241,237
General improvements Water and utility 800,680
Total $ 2,198,825

Balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that 1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
system, and 3) payments between funds are made.
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The following schedule briefly summarizes the City’s transfer activity at the fund level:

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount

General Water and utility $ 375,000
Debt service General 70,000
Debt service Nonmajor governmental 148,230
Water and utility Debt Service 200,000
Water and utility Economic Development Corporation 230,000
Water and utility Nonmajor governmental 92,745
Nonmajor governmental General 17,117
Nonmajor governmental Nonmajor governmental 10,000
Nonmajor governmental Water and utility 10,000
Internal service Economic Development Corporation 25,000

Total $ 1,178,092

Transfers are used to: (1) move revenues from the fund required by statute or budget to collect
them to the fund required by statute or budget to expand them; and (2) fund the City’s match
portion for grants.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

The amounts deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources reported in the governmental
funds in the period that amounts become available at September 30, 2015 were as follows:

Unavailable
General fund:
Delinquent property taxes receivable $ 1,066
Municipal court receivable 78,751
Total general fund 79,817
Debt service fund:
Delinquent property taxes receivable 88,358
Total debt service fund 88,358
Total governmental funds $ 168,175
Water and utility fund:
Deferred inflow related to pensions $ 1,566
Governmental activities:
Deferred inflow related to pensions $ 8,331

Long-term Debt

The City issues a variety of long-term debt instruments in order to acquire and/or construct major
capital facilities and equipment for governmental and business-type activities. These instruments
include general obligation and revenue bonds, tax notes and notes payable. These debt
obligations are secured by either future tax revenue, water and utility system revenue, or liens on
property and equipment. Debt obligations that are intended to be repaid from water and utility
system revenue have been recorded as business-type activities. All other long-term obligations of
the City are considered to be governmental type activities.

38



Bonds Payable and Tax Notes

A summary of the terms of general obligation, revenue, combination tax and revenue bonds, and
tax notes outstanding and their corresponding allocations to the governmental and business-type
activities at September 30, 2015, follows:

Series and Original Final Interest Governmental ~ Business-type
Issue Amount Maturity Rate Activities Activities
General Obligation Bonds
2007 Series $ 21,780,000 2030 4% - 5% $ 5,630,000 $ 7,400,000
2011 Series 3,715,000 2031 2% - 4% 2,265,000 625,000
7,895,000 8,025,000
General Obligation Refunding Bond
2010 Series 1,130,000 2015 1.75% - 3.05% - -
2011 Series 1,625,000 2020 2.10% 990,000 -
2012 Series 2,605,000 2023 3% 2,115,000 -
2013 Series 3,295,000 2034 3.75%-4.5% 3,065,000 -
2014 Series 5,750,000 2030 - 5,405,000
6,170,000 5,405,000
Combination Tax and Revenue Bonds
2006 Series 1,900,000 2021 4.25% 930,000
2008 Series 9,950,000 2028 4% - 4.6% 7,855,000 -
2010 Series 7,000,000 2032 1% - 5% 6,220,000 -
2013 Series 3,490,000 2033 2-4% - 3,355,000
2014 Series 4,000,000 2034 2-4% 2,950,000 985,000
17,955,000 4,340,000
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
2012 Series 1,790,000 2018 2.72% 925,000 -
2014 Series 4,000,000 2027 4.12% 3,790,000 -
4,715,000 -
Total Bonds $ 36,735,000 $ 17,770,000
Annual debt service requirements for bonds are as follows:
Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $ 2,695,000 $ 1,186,753 $ 815,000 $ 1,356,565
2017 2,778,750 1,114,165 846,250 1,303,206
2018 2,863,750 1,037,134 881,250 1,242,011
2019 2,627,500 956,401 912,500 1,176,582
2020 2,571,250 882,450 948,750 1,107,097
2021 - 2025 12,712,500 3,186,645 5,347,500 4,313,825
2026 - 2030 8,358,750 1,100,598 6,991,250 1,749,197
2031 -2035 2,127,500 128,375 1,027,500 104,155
Total $ 36,735,000 $ 9,592,521 $ 17,770,000 $ 12,352,638

Federal Arbitrage

General obligation bonds, combination tax and revenue bonds and certificates of obligation are
subject to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 related to arbitrage and interest
income tax regulations under those provisions.
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities
General obligation bonds $ 27,035,000 § - $ 1,185,000 $ 25,850,000 $ 1,470,000
General obligation refunding bond 7,060,000 - 890,000 6,170,000 680,000
Sales tax revenue bond 4,000,000 - 210,000 3,790,000 245,000
Sales tax revenue refunding bond 1,220,000 - 295,000 925,000 300,000
Premium from issuance
of bonds 611,836 - 53,203 558,633 -
Compensated absences 728,778 52,649 - 781,427 195,357
OPEB net pension obligation 168,093 46,982 - 215,075 -
Governmental activities
long-term liabilities $ 40.823.707 $ 99,631 $ 2,633,203  § 38290.135 § 2,890,357
Business-type activities
Tax and revenue bonds $ 18,530,000 $ 5,405,000 $ 6,165,000 $ 17,770,000 $ 815,000
Premium from issuance
of bonds 201,462 601,600 208,800 594,262 -
Compensated absences 290,367 - 48,491 241,876 60,469
OPEB net pension obligation 37,703 - 18,726 18,977 -
Business-type activities
long-term liabilities $ 19,059,532 $ 6,006,600 $ 6,441,017 $ 18,625,115 $§ 875,469

The compensated absences liability and OPEB pension obligation attributable to the governmental
activities will be liquidated primarily by the General Fund.

Pledged Revenues
Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation

The Board of Directors for the Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation adopted a
resolution that authorized the issuance of $4,000,000 worth of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds to pay for
the costs of acquiting real property for the Waterfront Project and the Downtown Project, planning
the two projects, parking, landscaping, meeting space, boardwalk, trail improvements, open space
or park improvements and street improvements related to such projects, and the payment of costs
of issuance related to the issuance of the bonds. This debt will be paid for with a one-half and one
percent sales and use tax levied on the receipts at retail of taxable items within the City. It is
anticipated that the pledged revenues will fully pay for future principal and interest payments. This
debt issue is due to be retired in August, 2027.
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Fund Balance

As of September 30, 2015, governmental fund balance is composed of the following:

Economic
Development Debt General Other

Fund Balance Classification General Corporation Service Improvements Governmental Totals
Nonspendable:

Prepaid items $ 15,681 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 15,681
Restricted:

Capital acquisition

and construction - - - 4,347,811 21,200 4,369,011

Tourism activities - - - - 407,351 407,351

Public safety - - - - 9,109 9,109

Building security - - - 43,930 43,930

Economic development - 2,089,025 - B - 2,089,025

Police forfeiture - - - E 136,678 136,678

Red Light Camera Enforce - - - - - -

Debt service - 70,234 - - 70,234
Unassigned 1,501,853 - - (L 242,145) 1,259,708
Total governmental

fund balance $ 1.517,534 $ 2,089,025 $ 70,234 § 4347811 % 376,123 $ 8,400,727

Defined Benefit Pension Policies

Plan Descriptions. The City participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal
Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered
in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act)
as an agency multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of
Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the System with a
six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s
defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Sections 401(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can
be obtained at www.tmrs.org.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided. TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions
are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes
governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with
interest, and the City-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity.
Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in over of seven payments options.
Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum
Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of
the member’s deposits and interest.
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Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2014 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 61
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 56
Active employees 105

222

Contributions. The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of
employee gross earnings, and the City matching percentages are with 100%, 150%, or 200%,
both as adopted by the governing body of the city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the
contributions rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age
Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount
necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City were required to contribute 7.0% of their annual gross earnings during
the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 4.52% and 4.92% in calendar years 2014
and 2015, respectively. The city’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30,
2015, were $269,784, and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability. The city’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December
31, 2014, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions:

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 3.0% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.50% to 12.00% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members,
retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy
Mortality Table, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality
improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality
Table is used, with slight adjustments.
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Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 2006
through December 31, 2009, first used in the December 31, 2010 valuation. Healthy post-
retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality
Experience Investigation Study covering the 2009 through 2011, and the dated December 31,
2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, along with a
change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed
annually. No additional changes were made for the 2014 valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.0%. The pension plan’s
policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on
both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term
and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates return
for each major assets class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Long-Term Expected Real Rate

Allocation of Return (Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.80%
International Equity 17.5% 6.05%
Core Fixed Income 30.0% 1.50%
Non-Core Fixed Income 10.0% 3.50%
Real Return 5.0% 1.75%
Real Estate 10.0% 5.25%
Absolute Return 5.0% 4.25%
Private Equity 5.0% 8.50%
Total 100.0%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions
will be made at the rates specified in statue. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s
Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to
determine the Total Pension Liability.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at 12/31/2013 $ 16,002,799 $ 17,313,215 $( 1,310,416)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 621,054 - 621,054
Interest 1,123,420 - 1,123,420
Change of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected and
actual experience ( 12,961) - ( 12,961)
Changes of assumptions - - -
Contributions - employer - 259,082 ( 259,082)
Contributions - employee - 395979  ( 395979)
Net investment income - 990,420 ( 990,420)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions ( 528,946) ( 528,946) -
Administrative expense - ( 10,340) 10,340
Other changes - ( 850) 850
Net changes 1,202,567 1,105,345 97,222
Balance at 12/31/2014 $ 17205366 $ 18,418,560 $(  1,213,194)

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
7.0%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.0%) of 1-percentage-higher (8.0%) than the
current rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate (6.0%)  Discount Rate (7.0%) Discount Rate (8.0%)
City's net pension
liability $ 1,168,509  $( 1,213,194)  $( 3,175,956)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-
issued TMRS financial report. The report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.org.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions. For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension
expense of $188,997.
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At September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
economic experience $ - $( 9,897)
Difference between projected and actual
investment earnings 177,204 -
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 182,950 -

Total $ 360,154  $( 9.897)

$182,950 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2015. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as
follows:

Year ended Dec 31
2015 $ 41,237
2016 41,237
2017 41,237
2018 43,596
2019 -
Thereafter -

Subsequent Event

Pursuant to TMRS policy of conducting experience studies every four years, the TMRS Board
at their July 31, 2015 meeting determined that they would be changing certain actuarial
assumptions including reducing the long term expected rate of return from the current 7% to
6.75% and changing the inflation assumption from 3% to 2.5%. Reduction of expected
investment return and related discount rate will increase projected pension liabilities. Reducing
the inflation assumption reduces liabilities as future annuity levels and future cost of living
adjustments are not projected to be a large as originally projected. While the actual impact on
the City’s valuation for December 31, 2015 is not known the City does expect some downward
pressure on its funded status and upward pressure on its 2017 actuarially determined
contribution (ADC) due to this change.

Other Postemployment Benefits

Postemployment Benefits Other than Pension Benefits

The City provides certain health care benefits through a single-employer defined benefit OPEB,
for all fulltime employees in an eligible class.
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Plan Participants

Employees who have retired under the City’s established procedures whereby individual
selection by the City or the employee to be included in a retiree classification is precluded,
may continue coverage under this contract.

Normal Retirement Benefits

At least 5 years of service credit and at least 60 years of age and currently enrolled in the
health care policy, or 20 years of cumulative service credit at any age and currently enrolled
in the health care policy.

Early Retirement Benefits

Any qualified retiree defined by retirement benefits is eligible for retiree health benefits.

Deferred Retirement Benefits

Members who terminate employment are not eligible for retiree health care benefits.

Death-in-Service Retirement Benefits

If coverage terminates as the result of an employee’s death, retirement, or divorce, a
dependent’s coverage can continue. The dependent must have been covered under the
contract for at least one year, except in the case of a dependent who is an infant under one
year of age. Continuation does not require evidence of insurability.

Duty and Non-duty Death in Service Retirement Benefits

Retirees will have coverage utilizing the same benefits and rates as all other employees.

Duty and Non-duty Death Disabled Retirement Benefits

Retirees will have coverage utilizing the same benefits and rates as all other employees.

Benefits for Spouses of Retired Emplovees

Continuation under this provision will not apply if continuation is required under the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985. In addition, continuation is not
available when coverage terminates due to any of these circumstances:

1. The contract is canceled; or

2. The dependent fails to make any timely premium payments.

Continuation ends after the earliest of the following:

1. The third anniversary of the severance of the family relationship or the
retirement or death of the subscriber;
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2.

4,

The insured fails to make premium payments within the time required to make
the payments;

The insured becomes eligible for substantially similar coverage under another
plan or program, including a group health insurance policy or contract, hospital,
or medical service subscriber contract, or medical practice or other prepayment
plan; or

The contract is canceled.

Non-Medicare and Medicare — Eligible Provisions

Loss of Coverage

If coverage terminates as the result of termination (other than for gross misconduct) or
reduction of employment hours, then the participant may elect to continue coverage for
eighteen (18) months from the date coverage would otherwise cease.

A covered dependent may elect to continue coverage for thirty-six (36) months from the date
coverage would otherwise cease if coverage terminates as the result of:

1.

2.

divorce from the covered employee;
death of the covered employee;
the covered employee becomes eligible for Medicare; or

a covered dependent child no longer meets the dependent eligibility
requirements.

Retiree Opt-out

Retirees who decide to opt-out of the health care plan will not be able to opt back in, even
when coverage from another entity ceases. There is no additional stipend provided for those
who opt out of retiree health care.
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Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The City’s annual other postemployment benefits (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameter of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of accrual that is
projected to recognize the normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The City does not issue
separate financial statements for the plan and the City has not established a trust to fund the plan.
The City’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, is as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 27,575
Interest on OPEB obligation 9,261
Adjustment to the ARC ( 8,580)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) end of year 28,256
Net estimated employer contributions -
Increase in net OPEB obligation 28,256
Net OPEB obligation - as of beginning of year 205,797
Net OPEB obligation (asset) as of end of year $ 234,053

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the City’s retiree health care plan, under GASB Statement No. 45 as of
September 30, 2015, is as follows:

Unfunded Actuary
Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Liability
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded as a Percentage
Valuation Date as  Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Covered of Covered
of December 31, (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) Payroll Payroll
2014 $ - $ 174,939 § 174,939 - % $ 5,447,095 3.21%

Under the reporting parameters, the City’s retiree health care plan is 0% funded with an
estimated actuarial accrued liability exceeding actuarial assets by $174,939 at September 30,
2015.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the
City’s retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of
actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit
method then provides for a systematic recognition of the cost of these anticipated payments. The
yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well
as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued liability.
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Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the City and include the
types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between
the City and the City’s employees to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term
perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and
assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Inflation Rate 3.0% per annum
Investment rate of return 4.5% per annum, net of expenses
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit Cost Method
Amortization method Level as a percentage of payroll
Amortization period 30 years; open amortization
Payroll growth rate 3.0% per annum

Medical trend Initial rate of 7.0%, declining to an

ultimate rate of 4.5% after 13 years

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status and the
annual required contributions of the City’s retiree health care plan are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The required schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary
information provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Employer Employer

Annual Amount Interest ARC OPEB Change NOO
Fiscal Year Required  Contributed on NOO Adjustment  Amortization Cost in NOO Balance
Ended Contribution  (estimate) 9) x4.5% 9)/(6) Factor Q2)+4)-(5) MH-3) NOO + (8)
0] @ 3 O] 5 (6) )] ®) &)
09/30/13  $ 23777 $ 2177 § 7,017  $(  6,859) 2416630 $ 23935 $ 21,758 § 177,687
09/30/14 27,467 - 7,996 (  7,353) 24.16630 28,110 28,110 205,796
09/30/15 27,575 - 9,261 (  8,580) 23.98540 28,256 28,256 234,053

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for the current year (4.5% discount rate, and level percent of pay
amortization) follow:

Annual Net
Fiscal Year OPEB Employer Percentage OPEB
Ended Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
09/30/13 $ 23,935 $ 2,177 9.10% $ 177,657
09/30/14 28,110 - 0% 205,796
09/30/14 28,256 - 0% 234,053
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Supplemental Death Benefits Fund

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group term life
insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group
term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate
coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before
November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earings, for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is
an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB.

City of Marble Falls offers supplemental death to:

Plan Year 2013 Plan Year 2014 Plan Year 2015
Active employees Yes Yes Yes
Retirees Yes Yes Yes

Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet
all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life
insurance during employees’ entire careers.

The City’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2015, 2014 and 2013, were
$8,901, $12,772 and $12, 443, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

Schedule of Contribution Rates

Annual Actual
Accounting Required Contribution Percentage
Year Contribution Made of ARC
Ending (Rate) (Rate) Contributed
09/30/13 0.16% 0.16% 100%
09/30/14 0.17% 0.17% 100%
09/30/15 0.17% 0.17% 100%

Risk Management

A public entity risk pool is a cooperative group of governmental entities joining together to
finance an exposure, liability or risk. The City participates in the Texas Municipal League Risk
Pool, a risk-sharing pool, for property, liability, and workers’ compensation, wherein member
cities pool risks and funds and share in the costs of losses. Claims against the City are expected
to be paid by that public entity risk pool. Should the City become insolvent, or otherwise unable
to pay claims, the City may have to pay the claims. There were no significant reductions in
insurance coverage or insurance settlements exceeding insurance coverage during each of the
past three years.
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Supplemental Death Benefits Fund

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group term life
insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group
term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate
coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before
November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is
an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB.

City of Marble Falls offers supplemental death to:

Plan Year 2013 Plan Year 2014 Plan Year 2015
Active employees Yes Yes Yes
Retirees Yes Yes Yes

Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet
all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life
insurance during employees’ entire careers.

The City’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2015, 2014 and 2013, were
$8,901, $12,772 and $12, 443, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

Schedule of Contribution Rates

Annual Actual
Accounting Required Contribution Percentage
Year Contribution Made of ARC
Ending (Rate) (Rate) Contributed
09/30/13 0.16% 0.16% 100%
09/30/14 0.17% 0.17% 100%
09/30/15 0.17% 0.17% 100%

Risk Management

A public entity risk pool is a cooperative group of governmental entities joining together to
finance an exposure, liability or risk. The City participates in the Texas Municipal League Risk
Pool, a risk-sharing pool, for property, liability, and workers’ compensation, wherein member
cities pool risks and funds and share in the costs of losses. Claims against the City are expected
to be paid by that public entity risk pool. Should the City become insolvent, or otherwise unable
to pay claims, the City may have to pay the claims. There were no significant reductions in
insurance coverage or insurance settlements exceeding insurance coverage during each of the
past three years.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND REALTED RATIOS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Plan Year

A. Total pension liability

Service Cost

Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)

Actuarial determined contribution

Difference between expected and actual experience

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending (a)

B. Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - Employer

Contributions - Employee

Net Investment Income

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative Expenses

Other

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)
C. Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b)
D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability

E. Covered employee payroll

F. Net position liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll
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2014

$ 621,054
1,123,420

( 12,961)

( 528,946)
1,202,567
16,002,799

§ 17,205,366

$ 259,082
395,979
990,420

( 528,946)
( 10,340)
( 850)

1,105,345
17,313,215

$__ 18418560

B( 1,213,194)
107.05%

$ 5,656,837
-21.45%



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHUEDLE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Fiscal Year 2014 2015
Actuarial determined contribution $ 248,771 $ 259,903
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 248,771 259,903

Contribution deficiency (excess) - =
Covered employee payroll 5,563,255 5,809,989

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 4.47% 4.47%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Valuation Date:
Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 31 and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization 25 years
Period
Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor
Inflation 3.00%
Salary Increases 3.50% to 12.00% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%
Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of

benefits. Last updated for the 2010 valuation pursuant to an
experience study of the period 2005-2009.

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with
male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%
and projected on a fully generational basis of with BB.

Other Information:

Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUE
Property taxes $ 1,420,500 $ 1,420,500 $ 1,394,158 $( 26,342)
Sales taxes 5,461,756 5,461,756 5,577,124 115,368
Franchise taxes 590,000 590,000 595,443 5,443
Mixed beverage taxes 36,000 36,000 47,303 11,303
Fines and forfeitures 183,500 183,500 158,446 ( 25,054)
Permits and fees 314,565 314,565 306,348 ( 8,217)
Intergovernmental 187,600 187,600 194,835 7,235
Interest on investments 4,100 4,100 2,364 ( 1,736)
Other 89,300 89,300 151,999 62,699
Total revenues 8,287,321 8,287,321 8,428,020 140,699
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Administration:
Personnel services 422,700 422,700 413,455 9,245
Supplies 49,480 49,480 52,682 ( 3,202)
Maintenance 31,800 31,800 16,441 15,359
Purchased and contracted services 298,527 298,527 275,952 22,575
Other services and charges 37,500 37,500 70,904 ( 33,404)
Total administration 840,007 840,007 829,434 10,573
Finance:
Personnel services 300,980 300,980 304,860 ( 3,880)
Supplies 14,200 14,200 12,171 2,029
Maintenance 23,000 23,000 24,084 ( 1,084)
Purchased and contracted services 34,750 34,750 32,705 2,045
Other services and charges 3,800 3,800 6,359 ( 2,559)
Total finance 376,730 376,730 380,179 ( 3,449)
Human resources:
Personnel services 58,340 58,340 60,373 ( 2,033)
Supplies 10,985 10,985 7,950 3,035
Maintenance 3,400 3,400 4,780 ( 1,380)
Purchased and contracted services 34,324 34,324 37,096 ( 2,772)
Other services and charges 20,350 20,350 17,409 2,941
Total human resources 127,399 127,399 127,608 ( 209
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Mayor and City Council:
Personnel services
Other services and charges
Total Mayor and City Council

Non-departmental:
Purchased and contracted services
Other services and charges
Total non-departmental

Total general government

PUBLIC SAFETY
Court:
Personnel services
Supplies
Purchased and contracted services
Other services and charges

Total court

Police department:
Personnel services
Supplies
Maintenance
Purchased and contracted services
Other operating
Total police department

(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 1,400 $ 1,400 $ 1,352 $ 48
10,000 10,000 16,682 ( 6,682)
11,400 11,400 18,034 ( 6,634)
- 135,680 135,680 -
25,000 25,000 25,000 -
25,000 160,680 160,680 -
1,380,536 1,516,216 1,515,935 281
123,820 123,820 126,463 ( 2,643)
1,360 1,360 1,504 ( 144)
24,950 24,950 24,608 342
13,625 13,625 17,896 ( 4.271)
163,755 163,755 170,471 ( 6,716)
2,351,600 2,351,600 2,402,801 ( 51,201)
163,550 163,550 118,673 44,877
205,900 205,900 210,206 ( 4,306)
140,225 140,225 131,748 8,477
35,500 35,500 35,849 ( 349)
2,896,775 2,896,775 2,899,277 ( 2,502)
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
Fire department:
Personnel services $ 1,178,050 $ 1,178,050 $ 1,168,496 $ 9,554
Supplies 80,395 80,395 66,756 13,639
Maintenance 43,650 43,650 42,469 1,181
Purchased and contracted services 48,679 48,679 51,913 ( 3,234)
Other operating 33,675 33,675 36,077 ( 2.402)
Total fire department 1,384,449 1,384,449 1,365,711 18,738
Code enforcement:
Personnel services 523,100 523,100 536,998 ( 13,898)
Supplies 40,910 40,910 30,763 10,147
Repairs and maintenance 11,600 11,600 11,309 291
Purchased and contracted services 30,950 30,950 26,851 4,099
Other services and charges 14,800 14,800 24,683 ( 9.883)
Total code enforcement 621,360 621,360 630,604 ( 9,244)
Total public safety 5,066,339 5,066,339 5,066,063 276
PUBLIC WORKS
Streets:
Personnel services 694,900 694,900 670,600 24,300
Supplies 63,400 63,400 54,099 9,301
Maintenance 148,700 148,700 156,672 ( 7,972)
Purchased and contracted services 130,372 130,372 124,623 5,749
Other services and charges 1,225 1,225 879 346
Total streets 1,038,597 1,038,597 1,006,873 31,724
Total public works 1,038,597 1,038,597 1,006,873 31,724
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Parks and recreation:
Personnel services
Supplies
Maintenance
Purchased and contracted services
Other services and charges

Total parks and recreation

Cemetery:
Maintenance
Purchased and contracted services

Total cemetery

Total culture and recreation
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance with

56

Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
504,250 $§ 504,250 $ 505,072 $( 822)
53,720 53,720 39,814 13,906
74,600 74,600 80,354 ( 5,754)
92,230 92,230 80,932 11,298
5,600 5,600 7,259 ( 1,659)
730,400 730,400 713,431 16,969
2,500 2,500 1,957 543
1,000 1,000 537 463
3,500 3,500 2,494 1,006
733,900 733,900 715,925 17,975
187,174 187,174 193,822 ( 6,648)
8,406,546 8,542,226 8,498,618 43,608
( 119,225) ( 254,905) ( 70,598) 184,307
500,000 500,000 375,000 ( 125,000)

(  91,900) (  91,900) ( 87,117) 4,783
7,000 7,000 3,306 ( 3,694)
415,100 415,100 291,189 ( 12391D)
295,875 160,195 220,591 60,396

1,296,943 1,296,943 1,296,943 -

$ 1,592,818 $ 1,457,138 $ 1,517,534 $ 60,396



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Sales taxes $ 1,796,252 1,796,252 $ 1,859,042 $ 62,790
Interest on investments 3,700 3,700 3,486 ( 214)
Permits and fees 55,000 55,000 52,183 ( 2.817)
Total revenues 1,854,952 1,854,952 1,914,711 59,759
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Personnel services 199,010 199,010 197,327 1,683
Supplies 9,500 9,500 5,252 4,248
Maintenance 36,340 36,340 25,482 10,858
Purchased and contracted services 1,590,400 1,590,400 1,460,771 129,629
Other services and charges 190,500 190,500 145,437 45,063
Capital outlay 715,033 715,033 150,830 564,203
Debt service
Principal 505,000 505,000 505,000 -
Interest 221,331 221,331 221,331 -
Total expenditures 3,467,114 3,467,114 2,711,430 755,684
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES ( 1.612,162) ( 1,612,162) 796.,719) 815,443
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 78,000 78,000 77,265 ( 735)
Transfers out ( 255,000) ( 255,000) 255,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) ( 177,000)  (  177,000) 177,735)  ( 735)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ( 1,789,162) ( 1,789,162) 974,454) 814,708
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 3,063,479 3,063,479 3,063,479 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 1,274,317 $ 1,274,317 $ 2,089,025 $ 814,708
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Budgetary Information

Annual appropriated budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, Hotel/Motel Tax, Police
Forfeiture, Economic Development Corporation, and Debt Service Funds on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles. An annual non-appropriated budget is adopted for the City’s
Water and Utility Enterprise Fund on a non-GAAP basis for managerial control. Project length budgets
are adopted for General Improvements, Capital Projects, Trunked Radio System, Amy Young Barrier
Grant, Building Security, and Texas Community Development Program Funds and amended on an
annual basis to reflect the uncompleted portion of the projects. These funds adopt their budget based on
individual projects that cross fund years. An annual comparison does not fairly represent the budgetary
results for multiple year projects.

The original budget is adopted by the City Council prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.
Amendments are made during the year on approval by the City Council. Unused budget appropriations
lapse at year-end unless carried forward to the next year by Council action. The final budget is legally
adopted by the Council prior to September 30 of each year.

The City Council has the authority to transfer appropriation balances from one expenditure category to
another within a department. Although costs are monitored by expenditure category, the legal level of
control (level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is the fund level. The reported budgetary
data has been revised for amendments authorized during the year.
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COMBINING AND
INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Hotel/Motel Tax — to account for receipt and allocation of the City’s hotel/motel
occupancy tax. Use of this tax is limited by law to the promotion of tourism. The hotel
occupancy tax rate for the City’s hotels is 7%.

Police Forfeiture — to account for cash assets seized, or the proceeds from the sale of
other assets seized, as a result of drug related law enforcement activities. By law, these
funds must be used for future illegal drug enforcement activity.

Trunked Radio System — to account for subscription fees from surrounding communities and
the expenditures related to the trunked radio system.

2006 TCDP Grant (Texas Community Development Program) — to account for the
financing sources and expenditures related to continued water and wastewater improvements
and street and drainage for Avenue T.

Flood Buy Back Fund — to account for the financing sources and expenditures related to
the purchase of properties within flood areas.

Impact Fee Fund — to account for all funds related to the water and sewer impact fees.

Amy Young Grant Fund — to account for the home improvements funded by the Amy
Young Barrier Removal Grant.

CDBG 2009 Avenue U (Community Development Block Program) — to account for the
financing sources and expenditures related to improvements made to Avenue U.

CDBG 2012 Sewer Project — to account for the financing sources and expenditures related to
improvements made to the City’s Sewer System.

Building Security Fund - to account for collection of the building security fee from each
conviction and funds are to be used for the municipal court and the building where the court
resides.



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Parks Improvement Fund — to account for the financing sources and expenditures related
to the Parks Improvement project.

2007 Flood Disaster Fund — to account for all activities related to the June 27, 2007,
flood disaster.



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Other taxes receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Special Revenue
Trunked
Hotel/Motel Police Radio
Tax Forfeiture System
$ 726 $ 136,678 $ 9,109
172,388 - B
241,237 - -
414,351 136,678 9,109
7,000 - -
7,000 - -
407,351 136,678 9,109
407,351 136,678 9,109
$ 414,351 $ 136,678 $ 9,109



Special Revenue

2006 Impact CDBG CDBG Building

TCDP Flood Fee Amy Young 2009 2012 Security
Grant Buy Back Fund Barrier Grant Avenue U Sewer Project Fund

" $ 6 $ 1,964 § = $ 1,500 $ 4023 § 43,930

- 6 1,964 - 1,500 4,023 43,930

- - - 18,399 - - .
26,743 181 - - - - -
26,743 181 - 18,399 - - -

- - 1,964 - 1,500 4,023 43,930
26,743) ( 175) - ( 18,399) - - -
26,743)  ( 175) 1,964 ( 18,399) 1,500 4,023 43,930

- $ 6 § 1,964 $ - $ 1,500 % 4,023 $ 43,930
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(Continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Capital Projects
Total
2007 Nonmajor
Parks Flood Governmental
Improvement Disaster Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 77,756 $ - $ 275,692
Other taxes receivable - - 172,388
Due from other funds - - 241,237
Total assets 71,756 - 689,317
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10,000 - 35,399
Due to other funds 54,043 196,828 277,795
Total liabilities 64,043 196,828 313,194
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 13,713 - 618,268
Unassigned ) - ( 196,828) ( 242,145)
Total fund balances 13,713 ( 196,828) 376,123
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 77,756 $ - $ 689,317
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Special Revenue

Trunked
Hotel/Motel Police Radio
Tax Forfeiture System
REVENUES
Hotel/motel taxes $ 625,853 $ - $ -
Fines and fees - 1,988 -
Intergovernmental 527 - 32,048
Investment earnings = 346 e N
Total revenues 626,380 2,334 32,048
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - -
Public safety - 6,793 29,446
Culture and recreation 358,632 - -
Capital outlay - = S
Total expenditures 358,632 6,793 29,446
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 267,748 ( 4,459) 2,602
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - E -
Transfers out ( 158,230) - =
Total other financing sources (uses) ( 158,230) - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 109,518 ( 4,459) 2,602
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 297,833 141,137 6,507
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 407,351 $ 136,678 $ 9,109
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Special Revenue

2006 Impact CDBG CDBG Building
TCDP Flood Fee Amy Young 2009 2012 Security
Grant Buy Back Fund Barrier Grant Avenue U Sewer Project Fund
$ = $ # $ - $ " $ - $ ” $ %
- - 92,745 - - - 3,188
- B - 110,000 - B -
- - 92,745 110,000 - - 3,188
- - - 155,516 - - 12,331
- - - 155,516 - - 12,331
- - 92,745 ( 45516) - - ( 9,143)
. - - 27,117 - - -
= 7 ( 92,745) - ” < ;
- - ( 92,745) 27,117 - - -
- - - ( 18,399) - . ( 9,143)
( 26,7143) ( 175) 1,964 - 1,500 4,023 53,073
$( 26,743)  $( 175) $ 1,964  $( 18,399) $ 1,500 § 4,023 3% 43,930
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Capital Projects
Total
2007 Nonmajor
Parks Flood Governmental
Improvement Disaster Funds
REVENUES
Hotel/motel taxes $ - $ - $ 625,853
Fines and fees - - 97,921
Intergovernmental - - 142,575
Investment earnings - B 346
Total revenues - - 866,695
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - 167,847
Public safety - - 36,239
Culture and recreation - - 358,632
Capital outlay 25,550 - 25,550
Total expenditures 25,550 - 588,268
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ( 25,550) - 278,427
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 10,000 - 37,117
Transfers out - - ( 250,975)
Total other financing sources (uses) 10,000 - ( 213,858)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ( 15,550) - 64,569
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 29,263 ( 196,828) 311,554
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 13,713 $C  196,828) $ 376,123
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES
Property taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 3,181,000 $ 3,181,000 $ 3,120,734 $( 60,266)
900 900 1,180 280

3,181,900 3,181,900 3,121,914 ( 59,986)

2,075,000 2,075,000 2,075,000 -
1,275,251 1,275,251 1,320,008 ( 44,757)

3,350,251 3,350,251 3,395,008 ( 44,757)

( 168,351) ( 168,351) 273,094) ( 104,743)
218,230 218,230 218,230 -

( 200,000) ( 200,000) 200,000) -
218,230 218,230 18,230 -
49,879 49,879 254,864) ( 304,743)
325,098 325,098 325,098 -

$ 374,977 $ 374,977 $ 70,234 $( 304,743)
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Hotel/motel taxes $ 475,000 $ 475,000 $ 625,853 $ 150,853
Intergovernmental 25,000 25,000 527 24,473
Investment earnings 100 100 - ( 100)
Total revenues 500,100 500,100 626,380 126,280
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Services - - 142,500 ( 142,500)
Other 264,833 264,833 209,632 55,201
Local assistance 11,000 11,000 6,500 4,500
Total expenditures 275,833 275,833 358,632 ( 82,799)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 224,267 224,267 267,748 43,481
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (  158,230) ( 158,230) ( 158,230) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (  158,230) ( 158,230) ( 158,230) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 66,037 66,037 109,518 43,481
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 297,833 297,833 297,833 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 363,870 $ 363,870 $ 407351 $ 43,481
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

POLICE FORFEITURE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Fines and fees $ - $ - $ 1,988 $ 1,988
Investment earnings 300 300 346 46
Total revenues 300 300 2,334 2,034
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Supplies 20,000 20,000 2,960 17,040
Other services and charges 5,000 5,000 3,833 1,167
Total expenditures 25,000 25,000 6,793 18,207
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ( 24,700) ( 24,700) ( 4,459 20,241
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 141,137 141,137 141,137 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 116,437 $ 116,437 $ 136,678 $ 20,241
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STATISTICAL SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This portion of the City of Marble Falls, Texas” comprehensive annual financial report presents multiple
years of data to provide a historical perspective for understanding the information available in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information and for assessing the
City’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 68
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the City’s financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 74
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess
the City’s most significant local revenue resource.

Debt Capacity 79
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess
the affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt
and the County’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Economic and Demographic Indicators 84
These schedules contain economic and demographic information
to help the reader understand the environment within which the
City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 86
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the City’s financial report
relates to the services and activities performed by the City.
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EXPENSES

Governmental activities:
General government

Public safety
Public works

Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:
Water and wastewater
Total business-type activities expenses

Total primary government program expenses

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:

General government

Public safety
Public works

Culture and recreation
Total charges for services

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary government program revenues

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009
$ 3,537,781 $ 3,414,850 $ 3,001,249
4,832,220 5,733,824 5,646,443
1,490,228 1,729,376 1,885,591
838,504 907,686 1,062,156
483,701 751,471 1,079,296
11,182,434 12,537,207 12,674,735
3,508,190 4,623,193 4,352,380
3,508,190 4,623,193 4,352,380
$ 14,690,624 $ 17,160,400 $ 17,027,115
$ 650,799 $ 629,137 $ 555,515
6,620 159,562 15,465
40,542 41,477 17,153
58,533 76,458 98,926
756,494 906,634 687,059
619,127 383,994 604,032
1,255,281 918,861 346,435
2,630,902 2,209,489 1,637,526
2,933,098 3,439,880 3,556,786
- - 2,125,837
2,933,098 3,439,880 5,682,623
$ 5,564,000 $ 5,649,369 $ 7,320,149
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TABLE 2

Fiscal Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$ 2,912,799 $ 2,448,150 § 2,773,415 $ 2,736,605 $ 3,615,994 $ 3,909,769

5,677,405 5,683,286 5,530,785 5,447,990 5,346,306 5,580,292
2,505,782 2,717,226 3,068,214 3,210,567 3,236,700 3,222,080
1,124,241 1,082,266 1,146,016 1,089,241 1,195,731 1,225,259
1,404,037 1,511,314 1,494,575 1,333,648 1,355,703 1,484,261
13,624,264 13,442,242 14,013,005 13,818,051 14,750,434 15,421,661
4,421,786 4,755,391 4,873,802 5,086,736 5,612,611 5,314,936
4,421,786 4,755,391 4,873,802 5,086,736 5,612,611 5,314,936

$ 18,046,050 $ 18,197,633 $ 18,886,807 $ 18,904,787 $ 20,363,045 $ 20,736,597

$ 544,704 $ 422,428 $ 343,192 $ 321,446 $ 351,424 $ 318,716

48,202 125,453 143,310 130,912 167,384 168,410
17,710 48,583 76,662 39,043 66,125 136,919
111,208 127,151 121,577 113,650 131,589 139,471
721,824 723,615 684,741 605,051 716,522 763,516
592,418 269,845 78,620 272,770 499,805 201,338
- " - 54,630 : 2

1,314,242 993,460 763,361 932,451 1,216,327 964,854
3,107,039 3,913,067 3,550,400 3,840,593 4,106,512 4,091,722
233,368 : 1,352,500 367,738 379,524 155,000
3,340,407 3,913,067 4,902,900 4,208,331 4,486,036 4,246,722

$ 4,654,649 $ 4,906,527 $ 5,666,261 $ 5,140,782 $ 5,702,363 $§ 5211,576
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUES
Governmental activities

Business-type activities

Total primary government net expense

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(Continued)
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental activities:

Taxes

Property

Sales

Franchise

Other
Investment earnings
Loss/gain on sale of assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Investment earnings
Loss/gain on sale of assets

Transfers
Total business-type activities

Total primary government
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities

Business-type activities

Total primary government

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009
$( 8.,551,532) $( 10.327.718) $( 11,037,209)
575.092) ( 1,183.313) 1,330,243
( 9,126,624) ( 11,511.031) ( 9,706,966)
1,976,266 2,571,934 3,803,048
6,237,604 6,296,080 6,095,187
440,748 448,804 421,100
350,704 378,395 322,280
509,835 831,364 246,872
322,967 196,587 45,077
100,142 236,042 448,573
( 361,635) 477,611 500,767
9,576,631 11,436,817 11,882,904
332,006 202,003 82,882
361,635 ( 477,611) ( 500,767)
693,641 ( 275,608) ( 417,885)
10,270,272 11,161,209 11,465,019
1,025,099 1,109,099 845,695
118,549 ( 1,458921) 912,358
$ 1,143,648 $( 349,822 $ 1,758,053

Note: The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2004.
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TABLE 2

Fiscal Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$( 12,310,022)  $( 12,448,782)  $( 13,249,644)  $( 12,885,600)  $( 13,534,107)  $( 14,456,807)
( 1,081,379) ( 842.324) 29,098 ( 878,405) ( 1,126,575) (_ 1,068,214)
( 13,391,401) ( 13,291,106) ( 13,220,546) ( 13,764,005) ( 14,660,682) ( 15,525,021)

3,995,373 4,034,744 4,074,096 4,104,048 4,281,225 4,500,973
5,819,527 5,877,763 6,014,725 6,754,361 7,185,011 7,436,165
527,617 505,866 519,081 508,627 521,249 595,443
502,606 421,209 418,000 637,407 584,337 675,904
21,898 51,621 20,734 17,644 7,975 7,376
225,856 215,384 5 2 117,589 80,571
309,554 43,166 116,511 183,678 125,269 143,445
( 5,026,429) 478,834 ( 1,947,172) 356,143 237,986 ( 1.337.745)
6,376,002 11,628,587 9,215,975 12,561,908 13,060,641 12,102,132
2,643 602 4,713 1,531 17,620 17,544
244,723 . . - " -
5,026,429 ( 478.834) 1,947,172 ( 356,143) ( 237,986) 1,337,745
5,273,795 ( 478232) 1,951,885 ( 354,612) ( 220.366) 1,355,289
11,649,797 11,150,355 11,167,860 12,207,296 12,840,275 13,457,421

( 5,934,020) ( 820,195) ( 4,033,669) (323,692 ( 473,466) ( 2,354,675)
4,192,416 ( 1,320,556) 1,980,983 ( 1,233,017 ( 1,346,941) 287,075

$( 1,741,604) $(C 2,140,751) $( 2,052,686) $( 1,556,709) $( 1.820,407) $( 2,067.600)
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TABLE 6
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates
General Marble
Obligation Total Falls
Fiscal Basic Debt Direct School Burnet
Year Rate Service Rate District County
2006 0.3950 $ 8,310,000 2.2638 1.4716 0.3972
2007 0.4850 15,030,000 2.1130 1.2350 0.3930
2008 0.6300 14,380,000 2.2614 1.2550 0.3627
2009 0.6134 22,835,000 2.2742 1.2850 0.3627
2010 0.6435 28,075,000 2.3135 1.2900 0.3692
2011 0.6435 36,765,000 2.3135 1.2900 0.3724
2012 0.6435 33,340,000 2.3159 1.2900 0.3724
2013 0.6483 33,155,000 2.3234 1.2800 0.3951
2014 0.6483 38,115,000 2.3423 1.2800 0.4140
2015 0.6483 37,293,633 2.3399 1.2800 0.4025

Source: Burnet County Appraisal District, City of Marble Falls, Marble Falls Independent School District.

Note: The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed on the previous January 1.
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

TABLE 7

CURRENT YEAR
2015 2006
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Value Value Value
Scott & White Healthcare $ 14,878,248 2.246% $ - xH
Huber JM Corp 10,526,719 1.589% 4,637,882 o
Wal-Mart Store Inc 01-0781 9,902,205 1.495% - P
Wal-Mart Stores East LP 8,300,813 1.253% - *k
Johnson-Sewell Family Partnership 6,060,392 0.915% 10,376,283 L
Lowe's Home Centers Inc 6,000,000 0.906% - *ok
HD Development Properties LP 5,369,232 0.810% - o
Johnson Ross H 5,020,707 0.758% - k]
SL Marble Falls LP 4,935,431 0.745% - e
SNH SE Properties Trust 4,894,483 0.739% - ok
11.456% $ 15,014,165 $ -

5__75,888230

Source: Burnet County Appraisal office

Note: **Unable to calculate due to incomplete data. Many taxpayers did not exist in 2006.
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PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

TABLE 8

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Collected With the
Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Fiscal for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year Ended Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2006 $ 1,820,611 $ 1,768,558 97.14% $ 35,886 $ 1,804,444 99.11%
2007 1,952,358 1,906,012 97.63% 30,284 1,936,296 99.18%
2008 2,539,085 2,499,612 98.00% B 2,499,612 98.45%
2009 3,755,312 3,633,761 96.76% 51,806 3,685,567 98.14%
2010 3,913,952 3,857,118 98.55% 56,834 3,913,952 100.00%
2011 3,973,652 3,909,526 98.39% 58,871 3,968,397 99.87%
2012 4,021,309 3,953,241 98.30% 68,068 4,021,309 100.00%
2013 4,056,133 3,995,294 98.50% 59,815 4,055,109 99.97%
2014 4,228,317 4,177,438 98.80% - 4,177,438 98.80%
2015 4,469,891 4,426,411 99.03% - 4,426,411 99.03%
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TABLE 9
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

MAJOR SOURCE OF REVENUE

SALES TAX HISTORY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year Revenue Tax Rate
2005-06 $ 5,692,747 8.25%
2006-07 6,212,036 8.25%
2007-08 6,305,601 8.25%
2008-09 6,111,541 8.25%
2009-10 5,798,120 8.25%
2010-11 5,877,763 8.25%
2011-12 6,014,725 8.25%
2012-13 6,754,361 8.25%
2013-14 7,185,011 8.25%
2014-15 7,436,166 8.25%
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TABLE 11
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Bonded Debt Outstanding Percentage of
General Actual Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Value of Per
_ Year Bonds Total ___ Property ___ Capita
2006 $ 8,310,000 $ 8,310,000 1.68% $  1,154.17
2007 15,030,000 15,030,000 3.04% 2,087.50
2008 14,380,000 14,380,000 2.75% 1,997.22
2009 22,835,000 22,835,000 3.83% 3,171.53
2010 28,075,000 28,075,000 4.39% 3,648.47
2011 36,765,000 36,765,000 5.95% 5,106.25
2012 33,340,000 33,340,000 5.32% 4,630.56
2013 31,650,000 31,650,000 5.06% 4,395.83
2014 38,115,000 38,115,000 5.64% 6,014.68
2015 36,735,000 36,735,000 531% 5,850.45

Notes:
Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
See Table 5 for property value data.

Population data can be found in Table 15.
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TABLE 12
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Estimated

Share of

Estimated Direct and

Debt Percentage Overlapping
Government Unit Qutstanding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes

Marble Falls Independent School District $ 70,881,595 22.000% $ 15,593,951
Burnet County General Obligation Debt 24,808,318 15.000% 3,721,248
Subtotal overlapping debt 16,005,301
City direct debt 38,115,000 100.000% 38,115,000
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 54,120,301

Sources: Burnet County Auditor (Burnet County Website), Marble Falls ISD

Notes:  Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of the City of Marble Falls. This process recognizes that, when considering the City's
ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be
taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident--and therefore responsible for
repaying the debt--of each overlapping government.
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TABLE 14
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Water Revenue Bonds

Utility Less: Net

Fiscal Service Operating Available Debt Service

Year Charges Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2005 $ 2,304,402 $ 1,916,578 $ 387,824 $ 435,000 $ 151,790 0.66
2006 2,715,995 2,047,125 668,870 450,000 138,515 1.14
2007 3,029,155 2,236,767 792,388 690,000 471,261 0.68
2008 2,933,098 2,204,332 728,766 740,000 403,390 0.64
2009 3,439,880 2,645,229 794,651 785,000 1,093,252 0.42
2010 3,523,144 2,409,754 1,113,390 1,175,000 1,014,268 0.51
2011 3,107,039 2,313,375 793,664 875,000 777,636 0.48
2012 3,550,400 2,328,678 1,221,722 750,000 712,063 0.84
2013 3,667,973 2,284,656 1,383,317 755,000 668,087 097
2014 4,034,129 2,623,404 1,410,725 795,000 785,973 0.89
2015 3,990,243 2,465,718 1,524,525 760,000 369,720 1.35

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. Operating
expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.
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TABLE 15
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Per Capita
Calendar Personal Personal Unemployment

Year Population Income Income Rate

2006 7,200 $ 45,889 $ 20,873 3.0%
2007 7,200 40,715 21,702 3.3%
2008 7,200 62,245 25,356 3.7%
2009 7,200 47,528 22,368 5.8%
2010 7,695 48,442 27,008 1.5%
2011 7,200 43,329 22,679 7.1%
2012 7,200 43,329 22,679 7.1%
2013 6,057 43,722 21,425 4.1%
2014 6,337 43,199 23,194 5.4%
2015 6,279 43,199 21,689 3.6%

Sources:  Median Household Income and Per Capita Income provided by Capital Area Council of
Governments.

Unemployment rate obtained from Texas Workforce Commission website.

Note: Effective in 2006, this data is no longer available for cities under 25,000 until next census.
The 2006 Unemployment Rate listed is for Burnet County.
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TABLE 16
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

2015 2006
Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment
Marble Falls ISD 629 22.14% 499 s
Wal-Mart 320 11.26% 350 ok
Baylor Scott & White 322 11.33% i ok
H.E.B. Grocery Company 200 7.04% 200 i
Lowe's 125 4.40% Lty ey
Granite Mesa 115 4.05% sy i
City of Marble Falls 107 3.77% 105 ok
Johnson-Sewell Ford Lincoln Mercury 105 3.70% ok ko
The Home Depot 86 3.03% 100 Bl
Cold Spring Texas Granite 72 2.53% 114 e

Total 2,081

Source: Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation and personal telephone interviews

* Employment for Total City of Marble Falls employees is an estimate based on personal telephone interviews.
Estimated City employment is 2,841.

** Data not available for employer in 2006.
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PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ® BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Marble Falls, Texas
Marble Falls, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Marble Falls, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Marble Falls, Texas’ basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 25, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Marble
Falls, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness City of Marble Falls,
Texas’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Marble Falls, Texas’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

1

®
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Marble Falls, Texas’ financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

@H\ﬂo\ @M’M}: HJﬁIL.\, %

Waco, Texas
February 25, 2016
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March 1, 2016
7. REGULAR AGENDA

(b) Discussion and Action on the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update. Eric Belaj,
City Engineer

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation
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AGENDA CAPTION

Discussion and Action on the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

The City of Marble Falls originally adopted a Hazard Mitigation Action Plan in
association with the Texas Colorado River Floodplain Coalition (TCRFC) and developed
by H20O Partners. It is required that this plan be updated every 5 years.

A FEMA-approved hazard mitigation plan is required for eligibility for grant funds
through FEMA'’s pre-disaster grant programs. Funds from these federal grant programs
may be awarded to local governments and non-profit organizations to implement
mitigation projects identified as part of a FEMA-approved hazard mitigation plan.

In 2011, the TCRFC sponsored the development of a multi-jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan Update that addressed all natural and man-caused hazards that could
potentially affect communities that participated in the 2004 Hazard Mitigation Plan,
“Creating a Disaster Resistant Lower Colorado River Basin.”

In 2015, the TCRFC contracted with Jeff Ward of JSW & Associates, Halff Associates
and Tetra Tech, Inc. to update of the 2011 Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP). This is the
City’'s second update and includes the review of past mitigation actions and risk
assessments for the City Marble Falls. The update is an opportunity to evaluate
successful mitigation actions and to explore other means of avoiding future disaster
loss. Due to Legislative changes, the Basin-wide HMP is required to be divided into
smaller geographic groups. The City of Marble Falls is included with Burnet County in
the new update of the HMP.

The goal of the plan is to minimize or eliminate the long-term risk to human life and
property from known hazards by identifying and implementing cost-effective mitigation
actions. Mitigation is defined by FEMA as sustained actions taken to reduce or eliminate
long-term risk to people and property from hazards and their effects. The purpose of
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Marble Fall’s mitigation plan is twofold: to protect people and structures, and to
minimize the costs of disaster response and recovery.

In accordance with federal planning requirements, the participating jurisdictions must
review, approve and adopt the updated hazard mitigation plan. At this point in the
update procedure, the HMP is made available for the public to review. A hard copy of
the HMP has been made available for public view and a digital copy is available on the
City’s website and Facebook page. The Plan will remain open for review until March 2",
2016. After review is complete, the plan will be finalized by JSW & Assoc. The City will
then be asked to adopt the HMP by Resolution scheduled for Spring 2016.

View City of Marble Falls proposed mitigation plan.

The Draft PDF of the Plan can be found at
http://www.marblefallstx.gov/IDocumentCenter/Home/View/2468
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AREA-WIDE MITIGATION ACTIONS AND IMPLEMENTATION

TABLE 19-1.
MITIGATION ACTIONS DEVELOPED TO ADDRESS HAZARDS
g = - Z S B
.2 o < - = <
¢, = ¢ & E _ 3f 3 o« B oo :
. (= ) = = < W 173 = 1Z fi= 2
Action . K 2= 3 T = o g 5 .84 2 E 5 E - E 2
Title = = & = 2 g 2 T ETR 5 = g g = "’
No. s g8 £ £ g S K 5.9 N w2 S I 25
@ s A < g, = == - 3 = = =
o A o8| = o o = = s
S SIS =S = =
Educate citizens about purchasing flood insurance
through the National Flood Insurance Program N/A X N/A
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS
1 Creek and Crossings Clearing Project N/A N/A X X N/A X
2 Family Emergency Preparedness Kit N/A X X N/A X X N/A X X X X X X
3 Install hail resistant roofing and window coverings N/A N/A X N/A
4 Backbone Tributary Bypass N/A N/A X X N/A X
5 Whitman Branch Bypass N/A N/A X X N/A X
6 Support Burnet County CERT N/A X N/A X X X N/A X X X X X X
7 Install an Alert AM Emergency Advisory Radio N/A X X X NA X X X % N/A % X % X X %
System
8 Complete Firewise Community Project N/A X NA X N/A X
9 Build bridge at Mission Hills Street creek crossing N/A N/A X X N/A X
Acquire residential and commercial property with
10 substantially damaged structures located in the N/A N/A X X N/A
flood plain and relocate them out of floodplain
11 Install computer-based flood warning system with N/A N/A X X N/A X
remote flashers and remote automatic gates
CITY OF MEADOWLAKES
1 Building Foundation Requirements N/A N/A X N/A
2 CERT N/A X X N/A X X X X X N/A X X X X X X
3 Reverse 911 System N/A X N/A X X X X N/A X X X X X X
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AREA-WIDE MITIGATION ACTIONS AND IMPLEMENTATION

TABLE 19-2.
RECOMMENDED MITIGATION ACTIONS

. Mitigation . . . . Potential
Action Title Description Action Action  Applicable Ap P llcgble Estimated Funding Timeline Benefit
No. . Type Goals Objectives Cost
Ranking Sources
Public Awareness  Use the city’s website to educate 01.1.03.1 General
4 of Weather residents about weather hazard events 4 EAP Gl1,G3 oo <$10,000 Ongoing  Medium
. L . 03.2 Revenue
Hazard Events including lightning awareness program.
Provide education
for subdivisions
regarding . .
Provide education for flood/fire
5 flood/fire evacuation procedures and the Turn 3 EAP Gl1, G3 011,013, < $10,000 General Ongoing High
procedures and R 03.1,03.2 Revenue
Around Don’t Drown Program.
the Turn Around
Don’t Drown
Program
Educate citizens
about purchasing
flood insurance . .
6  through the Provide education for NFIP program at 5 EAP G3 032,033 <sio000  Seneral Ongoing  Medium
. City Hall. Revenue
National Flood
Insurance
Program

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS

This project aims to remove trees and

Creek and . . . .

1 Crossings other vegetation, along with any debris, NSP  GI,G4 013,041 >8$100,000 OrSCity oo ging  High
. . along the floodway and culvert crossings resources
Clearing Project .
to Increase conveyance.
. Educate and empower residents about

Family the importance of having an emergency Long

2 Emergency preparedness kit. Use the Ready.gov 7 EAP Gl O1.1,01.3  <$10,000 City funds Term Medium

Preparedness Kit .
website as a resource.
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Burnet County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

TABLE 19-2.

RECOMMENDED MITIGATION ACTIONS

. Mitigation . . . . Potential
Action Title Description Action Action  Applicable Ap P llcgble Estimated Funding Timeline Benefit
No. . Type Goals Objectives Cost
Ranking Sources
Install hail This action will determine feasibility of
resistant roofin installing hail resistant roofing and HMGP, Short
3 . & . & . yolng a 11 SIP G2 022 >$100,000 Insurance Low
and window window coverings on existing city . Term
. o1 Companies
coverings buildings.
This project consists of constructing
three 8’x7’ box culverts along the south
4 Backbone side of FM 1431 from 800 feet west of SIP Gl1, G2, 01.3,02.2, ~$100.000 Grants, City Long Hich
Tributary Bypass  Industrial to Backbone Creek. This NSP G5 05.1 ’ resources Term £
alternative is laid out in the 2013 Flood
Study.
This alternative will consist of installing
. a 50-foot wide by 5-foot deep bypass .
5 ;Vhlglsﬁan Branch channel to the east along Oak Ridge ngl’) Glc’}?z’ o1 '(3)’5012'2’ >$100,000 Grr:Srglsl’rilsty %221% High
P Drive. This alternative is laid out in the '
2013 Flood Study.
Support Burnet Continue to be involved with and Gl, G3, 01.3,03.1, . Long
®  County CERT  support the Burnet County CERT. L EAP G4 G6 042,061 810,000 City funds Term Low
Install an Alert E}rifeflte}]nzvoigv()isgrratliﬁie; tSl'?al:/ilon to
AM Emergency eency ory LPR 01.1,012, $10,000 to Long .
7 . . tell citizens and visitors what to do 8 Gl1,G3 Grants Medium
Advisory Radio L . EAP 03.1,03.2 $100,000 Term
during incidents that threaten life and
System
property.
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AREA-WIDE MITIGATION ACTIONS AND IMPLEMENTATION

TABLE 19-2.

RECOMMENDED MITIGATION ACTIONS

. Mitigation . . . . Potential
Action Title Description Action Action  Applicable Ap P llcgble Estimated Funding Timeline Benefit
No. . Type Goals Objectives Cost
Ranking Sources
Complete .
Firewise Work t~h‘rough the five steps of F1rew1s§: LPR G, G2, 01.3,02.3, Grants, City Short .
8 . recognition until complete. Then submit 03.1,03.2, <$10,000 High
Community o EAP G3, G4 resources Term
. application to the state. 04.1
Project
Build bridge at
9 Mission Hills Build brldg.e at Mission Hills Street 5 SIP Gl 013,014  >8$100,000 Grants, City Long Medium
Street creek creek crossing. resources Term
crossing
Acquire
residential and
commercial
property with . . . 01.3,014,
jo  Substantially ii?ii??ﬂ algsogféﬁanr(;e’eFEhiAsA 6 nsp GLG2 021,022, g 160000  Orants City o iing  Medium
damaged subs tantieill cfama od property G5, G6 02.3,05.1, i resources gomng
structures located Y ged. 06.1
in the floodplain
and relocate them
out of floodplain
Install computer-
based flood The Locations are: Lakeview Drive,
warning system Avenue N, Broadway and Main Street, .
11 with remote Broadway and Avenue J, Broadway and 9 SIP Gl1,G3 012,013, >$100,000 Grants, City Long Medium
03.1,03.2 resources Term

flashers and
remote automatic
gates

L, Broadway and Q, Broadway and U,
Mission Hills Drive, Oakridge Drive.
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March 1, 2016
7. REGULAR AGENDA

(c) Discussion and update regarding the current Capital Improvement Plan. Eric
Belaj, City Engineer

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation
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| AGENDA CAPTION

Discussion and update regarding the current Capital Improvement Plan.

\ BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

Below are the City’s major capital improvement projects currently under construction.

Water Plant Expansion

Current construction activities involve the installation of a 60-foot diameter clarifier tank,
including site piping, valves, and electrical connecting the concrete tank to the rest of the
water plant. Part of this construction phase include also upgrades to the existing rapid
mix and sludge basin pumps. Construction began July 13", 2015 and is on schedule to
be completed by March 10", 2016. The contractor selected for this project is Excel
Construction.

Availability of funds are temporarily delaying the design of Phase-4, which is estimated to
cost approximately $2.5MM. Phase 4 will add one additional filter, building expansion,
pumping, major electrical work, and upgrades to the raw water intake. These additions
will permit the plant to treat 4.8 million gallons per day (MGD), from the current 3 MDG.

Wastewater Plant Expansion

The same contractor, Excel Construction, currently working at the water plant, is now
constructing the wastewater plant expansion. The planned expansion will increase the
treatment plant’s capacity from 0.98 MGD to 1.5 MGD. Construction began January 11,
2016 and is anticipated to be complete by November 7™, 2016. The construction cost is
$2.46MM.

Ave. N Realignment

The contractor for this project is Ross Construction. Construction began February 10™,
2016 and is currently scheduled to be substantially completed by June 9", 2016. The total
cost of the construction is $662,516.53. Proposed construction consists of constructing
800 feet long by 31 feet wide roadway from Broadway to 1431. The new roadway will
have a 5-foot sidewalk along the west side, curbs, asphalt pavement, striping, and will
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also include ramps and crosswalks. Currently the contractor is excavating the new
roadway alignment and remediating some substandard soils discovered during
excavation.

Staff created construction sequencing drawings for the contractor; the drawings split the
construction activities into four distinct phases. This was an effort to minimize the impact
to drivers and adjacent business owners.

Schedule
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ID | Task Name Duration Start Finish ary 1| February|March 1 [April1 [May1 [Junel [Julyl [Au
1/1711/312/142/28[3/13'3/27/4/10/4/24] 5/8 [5/22] 6/5 |6/19] 7/3 [7/17[7/31
1 CITY OF MARBLE FALLS AVE N 135 days Wed 2/10/16 Thu 6/23/16 | |
| |
I I
2 AVE N SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 120 days Wed 2/10/16 Wed 6/8/16 ! !
| |
I I
3 START CONSTRUCTION 0 days Wed 2/10/16 Wed 2/10/16 } }
I I
I I
4 CLEARING/EXCAVATION/ IN ROW 57 days Wed 2/10/16 Wed 4/6/16 | |
I I
I I
5 CLEAR AND GRUB NEW ROW 10 days Wed 2/10/16 Fri 2/19/16 ! !
I I
I I
6 EXCAVATE \ EMBANK NEW ROW 35 days Fri 2/12/16 Thu 3/17/16 : :
I I
| |
7 INSTALL GABION RETAINING WALLS 25 days Mon 2/15/16 Thu 3/10/16 | |
I I
| |
8 DEMOLISH AVE N BETWEEN 9TH AND BROADWAY 5 days Fri 3/18/16 Tue 3/22/16 ! !
I I
| |
9 EXCAVATE ROADWAY BETWEEN 9TH AND BROADWAY 15 days Wed 3/23/16 Wed 4/6/16 : :
| |
I I
10 MILESTONE CLEAR/EXC/TRENCH COMPLETE 0 days Wed 4/6/16 Wed 4/6/16 | |
| |
I I
11 UTILITIES AND DRAINAGE 81 days Mon 2/22/16 Thu 5/12/16 ! !
| |
I I
12 LOWER EXISTNIG WATER LINE 15 days Mon 2/22/16 Mon 3/7/16 : :
I I
I I
13 INSTALL CULVERT AND INLETS 10 days Sun 3/6/16 Tue 3/15/16 | |
I I
I I
14 INSTALL FRENCH DRAIN 60 days Mon 3/14/16 Thu 5/12/16 ! !
I I
I I
15 HEADWALLS 5 days Sun 5/8/16 Thu 5/12/16 : :
I I
Il Il
Critical Baseline D Project Summary —
Critical Split s Baseline Split o EdemalTasks
Project: 6D 021704 Critical Progress Baseline Milestone <> External Milestone ‘
Date: Wed 2/24/16 Task Milestone ‘ Deadline @
Spllt FECEEUE D SummaryProgress mmm]mm
|

Task Progress

Summary _

[Date] C:\Users\RCN\Dropbox (Ross Co)\JOB FOLDERS\16 JOBS\City of Marble Falls Ave N\City of Martfagells Ave N REVISED 2-24-16.mpp




ID |Task Name Duration Start Finish ary 1/ February|March 1 [Aprill [May1 [Junel [July1l [Au
1/1711/312/142/28[3/13'3/27/4/10/4/24] 5/8 [5/22] 6/5 |6/19] 7/3 [7/17[7/31
16 MILESTONE WET UTILITIES COMPLETE 0 days Thu 5/12/16 Thu 5/12/16 |
|
I
17 DEMOLITION 70 days Sun 2/21/16 Sun 5/1/16 :
|
I
18 DEMOLISH AVE N BETWEEN HWY 1431 AND 9TH 7 days Thu 3/10/16 Wed 3/16/16 :
I
I
19 DEMOLISH CURB ON HWY 1431 70 days Sun 2/21/16 Sun 5/1/16 |
I
I
20 MILESTONE DEMOLITION COMPLETE 0 days Wed 3/16/16 Wed 3/16/16 ‘
I
I
21 ROADWORK 73 days Mon 3/28/16 Wed 6/8/16 :
I
|
22 CEMENT STABILIZE SUBGRADE 10 days Mon 3/28/16 Wed 4/6/16 |
I
|
23 FIRST COURSE BASE AND GEOGRID 12 days Thu 4/7/16 Mon 4/18/16 ‘
I
|
24 SECOND COURSE BASE AND GEOGRID 12 days Tue 4/19/16 Sat 4/30/16 :
|
I
25 CURB AND GUTTER 12 days Sun 5/1/16 Thu 5/12/16 |
|
I
26 MILESTONE CURB AND GUTTER COMPLETE 0 days Thu 5/12/16 Thu 5/12/16 !
|
I
27 FINAL COURSE BASE 17 days Fri 5/13/16 Sun 5/29/16 :
I
I
28 RAISE CASTINGS 3 days Mon 5/30/16 Wed 6/1/16 ‘
I
I
29 RAMPS AND SIDEWALKS 15 days Fri 5/13/16 Fri 5/27/16 ‘
I
I
30 TOPSOIL 8 days Mon 5/23/16 Mon 5/30/16 :
I
Il
Critical Baseline (| Project Summary _
Critical Split s Baseline Split o External Tasks [——
Project: 6D 021704 Critical Progress Baseline Milestone <> External Milestone ‘
Date: Wed 2/24/16 Task Milestone ‘ Deadline @
Spht R RN RN R AT SummaryProgress mmm]mm
Task Progress I S mmary _
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ID |Task Name Duration Start Finish ary 1| February|March 1 [April1 [May1 [Junel [Julyl [Au
1/1711/312/142/28[3/133/27/4/10/4/24] 5/8 [5/22] 6/5 |6/19] 7/3 [7/17[7/31
31 HYDROMULCH 4 days Tue 5/31/16 Fri 6/3/16 | ' | | Fow |
| [ | | |
I | I I I
32 PAVE 2 days Mon 6/6/16 Tue 6/7/16 ! v ! ! ‘
| [ | | |
I | I I I
33 PUNCH LISTS PREPARED 1 day Wed 6/8/16 Wed 6/8/16 : ;o : : :
I | I I I
I | I I I
34 Additional Rain Days Over Allowance 0 days Tue 6/7/16 Tue 6/7/16 | 1 | | |
I | I I I
I | I I I
35 Additional Days from Change Orders 0 days Tue 6/7/16 Tue 6/7/16 I L I I I
I | I I I
I | I I I
36 MILESTONE SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 0 days Tue 6/7/16 Tue 6/7/16 : P : : :
I | I I I
| [ | | |
37 FINAL PUNCHLIST 15 days Thu 6/9/16 Thu 6/23/16 | - | | |
I | I I I
| [ | | |
38 COMPLETE PUNCH LIST 15 days Thu 6/9/16 Thu 6/23/16 ! v ! ! *
I | I I I
| [ | | |
39 CONTRACTOR SUBMIT AS-BUILT DRAWINGS 0 days Thu 6/23/16 Thu 6/23/16 : e : : :
| [ | | |
I | I I I
40 MILESTONE PROJECT COMPLETION 0 days Thu 6/23/16 Thu 6/23/16 | . | | |
| [ | | |
I | I I I
Critical Baseline D Project Summary _
Critical Split s Baseline Split o External Tasks [——
Project: 6D 021704 Critical Progress Baseline Milestone <> External Milestone ‘
Date: Wed 2/24/16 Task Milestone ‘ Deadline @
Spht R R RN AR AN SummaryProgress mmm]mm
Task Progress | Summary _

[Date] C:\Users\RCN\Dropbox (Ross Co)\JOB FOLDERS\16 JOBS\City of Marble Falls Ave N\City of MartfageiB Ave N REVISED 2-24-16.mpp




March 1, 2016
7. REGULAR AGENDA

(d) Discussion regarding a Transportation Utility Fund. Caleb Kraenzel, Director of
Development Services

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation
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AGENDA CAPTION |

Presentation and Discussion regarding the concept of a Transportation Utility Fee.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

The purpose of this item is an introductory presentation regarding the concept of a
Transportation Utility Fee (TUF). This item is for informational purposes and is meant for

discussion and education on the issue.

During our most recent community survey of the Comprehensive Plan, among the
myriad of issues presented to residents, businesses, and property owners the issue of streets
came up several times. This was reflected either as an area that participants identify as
needing improvement or  support changing priorities to support improvement. Street
maintenance, sidewalk maintenance, and recreation service/programs were the three lowest
ranked City services when compared to all City services. Improvement of street/sidewalk
conditions and improving or adding sidewalks were two of the highest ranking needed identified.
When asked in the next five to ten years, which areas should the City focus, street repair and
replacement ranked second only to addressing the need for improved traffic flow and safety.
When asked, would you support or paying more taxes or fees to support a particular area for
improvement, Street repair and replacement ranked first, with a close second being need for

improved traffic flow and safety.

Overall, the culmination and overlap of responses to these different questions provides
clear information derived from the residents, businesses, and property owners whom
participated in the survey that they would choose one of the City’s top priority’s to be the need to

improve City wide street maintenance.

7 (d) - Page 1 of 2



Dovetailing with those initiatives, City staff has a commitment to explore new and/or
innovative concepts to local government. An area that is the most challenging are discovering
options to diversify revenue streams. Over past years, the idea of street assessments as a way
to generate revenue for street maintenance has been discussed. With street assessments being
not practiced for some time, and potential legal difficulties they could pose, City staff has been
attentive to discovering and exploring options for funding street maintenance. The concept of a
transportation utility fee is one such option, which is a newer concept in municipal practice, but
also provides a funding source to address the resounding feedback regarding street

maintenance received during the comprehensive plan survey (conducted Summer 2015).

The presentation will be conducted by a consultant, Chris Erkut, Director, NewGen
Strategies and Solutions, LLC. Mr. Erkut and his firm specialize in the area of development and
implementation of Transportation Utility Fees and other similar areas of expertise, and he will be

available to answer questions on the topic during the item/presentation.
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March 1, 2016
7. REGULAR AGENDA
(e) Receipt and Acceptance of the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for the

May 7, 2016 General Election as certified by the City Secretary. Christina
McDonald, City Secretary

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation
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AGENDA CAPTION

Receipt and Acceptance of the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for the May 7,
2016 General Election as certified by the City Secretary.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION |

All candidates in the May 7, 2016 election are unopposed and there were no write-in
candidates, therefore the city is authorized to cancel the election.

In order to cancel the May election, the Secretary of State requires that the governing
body must receive and accept the Certification of Unopposed Candidates prior to
approving an ordinance cancelling the election and declaring each unopposed
candidate elected to office.

Attached is a Certification of Unopposed Candidates prepared by the City Secretary for
Council’s review and acceptance.
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CERTIFICATION OF UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES
TO: Presiding Officer of Governing Body, John Packer, Mayor

As the authority responsible for having the official ballot prepared, | hereby certify that the
following candidates are unopposed for election to office for the election scheduled to be held on
Saturday, May 7, 2016.

List offices and names of candidates:

Offices Candidates
Councilmember At-Large Place 1 Craig Magerkurth
Councilmember At-Large Place 3 Reed Norman
Councilmember At-Large Place 5 Richard Westerman

/s/ Christina McDonald
Signature

Christina McDonald, TRMC
Printed name

City Secretary
Title

February 25, 2016
Date of signing
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March 1, 2016

7. REGULAR AGENDA

(f) Discussion and Action on Ordinance 2016-O-03A cancelling the May 7, 2016
General Election and declaring each unopposed candidate elected to office.
Christina McDonald, City Secretary

Background information is attached as follows:

Cover Memo and Supporting Documentation
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| AGENDA CAPTION |

Discussion and Action on Ordinance 2016-O-03A cancelling the May 7, 2016 General
Election and declaring each unopposed candidate elected to office.

| BACKGROUND INFORMATION \

Election law allows that upon receipt and acceptance of the Certification of Unopposed
Candidates by Council that Council may approve an Ordinance cancelling the election
and declaring each unopposed candidate elected to office.

A copy of the order cancelling the election will be posted on election day at each polling
place that would have been used in the election.

Please note that the candidates may not take office until the regular canvassing period
would have taken place.

Oaths of Office will be administered at the May 17, 2016 City Council Meeting.
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ORDINANCE NO. 2016-O-03A

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES IN
THE MAY 7, 2016 GENERAL CITY ELECTION, ELECTED TO
OFFICE; CANCELLING THE ELECTION; PROVIDING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the general city election was called for February 2, 2016, for the purpose
of electing members to the city council; and

WHEREAS, the City Secretary has certified in writing that there is no person has made
a declaration of write-in candidacy, and that each candidate on the ballot is unopposed for
election to office; and

WHEREAS, under these circumstances, Subchapter C, Chapter 2, Election Code,
authorizes the City Council to declare the candidates elected to office and cancel the election;
NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS:

Section 1. The following candidates, who are unopposed in the May 7, 2016_General City
Election, are declared elected to office, and shall be issued certificates of election following the
time the election would have been canvassed:

Place 1 — Craig Magerkurth
Place 3 — Reed Norman
Place 5 — Richard Westerman

Section 2. The May 7, 2016 General City Election is cancelled, and the City Secretary is
directed to cause a copy of this ordinance to be posted on Election Day at each polling place used
or that would have been used in the election.

Section 3. It is declared to be the intent of the City Council that the phrases, clauses,
sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause,
sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance is declared invalid by the judgment or decree of
a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases,
clauses, sentences, paragraphs, or sections of this ordinance since the City Council would have
enacted them without the invalid portion.

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect upon its final passage, and it is so ordained.

7 (f) - Page 2 of 3



PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 1% DAY OF MARCH, 2016.

John Packer, Mayor

ATTEST:

Christina McDonald, TRMC
City Secretary

ATTEST:

Patty Akers, City Attorney
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City of Marble Falls, Texas

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo
March 1, 2016

Agenda Item: Executive Session

Prepared By: Christina McDonald, City Secretary
Department: Administration

Submitted By: Christina McDonald, City Secretary

| AGENDA CAPTION \
EXECUTIVE SESSION
Close Open Session and Convene Executive Session Pursuant to 8551.071 (Private
Consultation between the Council and its Attorney) and pursuant to 8551.072 (Deliberation
Regarding the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property) of the Open Meetings
Act. Tex. Gov't Code, Council will meet in Executive Session to discuss the following:

Consultation with City Attorney regarding the authority of the City to
manage the closure of Avenue N.

Discuss economic development projects associated with development of
EDC owned and City owned property.

CERTIFICATION:

| hereby certify that | have reviewed the proposed topic for the Executive Session
described herein and in my opinion, the Texas Open Meetings Act authorizes the
Marble Falls City Council to meet in Executive Session and to deliberate regarding the
subject matter contained in this cover memo.

Signed this day of , 2016.

City Attorney
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